





FOR US, THE PLAY OF PASSION DELIVERS VALUE TRROUGH A GREAT MIX.
IN TODAY'S DYNAMIC BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT, ONE WHO PASSIONATELY STRIVES TO UNDERSTAND
WHAT CONSUMERS AND SHOPPERS WANT, GOES A LONG WAY. WITH AN INTENT AIMED

AT GLOBAL SCALE AND AGILITY, RADICO KHAITAN IS SETTING NEW TRENDS BY ENSURING THAT
ITS PASSION FOR EXCELLENCE TAKES THE ORGANIZATION ON A NEW HIGH.

SOLID FUNDAMENTALS THAT DRIVE OUR PASSION
Radico Khaitan's strategy is built on creating value through a systematic policy of upscaling its brands, or
Premiumisation. Each of our brands has catapulted Radico to a new high of premium stature and credible
international acclaim. The organisation has made a major bet on innovation, which it understands is a
major driver of growth. Radico’s constant innovation and greater customer delight with every brand is the
outcome of its unchallenged leadership. Creating conditions for profitable and sustainable growth, the
Group has all the means to seize opportunities, the right way. The culmination of premiumisation,
innovation and customer satisfaction results in creating success stories for our brands, This is the fourth
consecutive year for Radico to win international honors in the form of exclusive awards at Monde

Selection (International Institute of Quality Selections).

Halt of Fame
Magic Moments Plain Vodka - Monde Selection Award - Gold Medal
Remix Chocolate Flavoured Vodka - International Spirits Challenge - Silver Medal
Remix Lemon Flavoured Vodka - International Spirits Challenge - Bronze Medal
Remix Orange Flavoured Vodka - International Spirits Challenge - Bronze Medal
Remix Raspberry Flavoured Vodka - International Spirits Challenge - Bronze Medal
Remix Green Apple Flavoured Vodka - Monde Selection Award - Bronze Medal
Remix Lemongrass & Ginger Flavoured Vodka - Monde Selection Award - Grand Gold
Remix Orange Flavoured Vodka - Monde Selection Award - Gold
Remix Lemon Flavoured Vodka - Monde Selection Award - Gold
After Dark Whisky - Monde Selection Award - Silver Medal

Morpheus Brandy - Monde Selection Award - Gold Medal
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to announce another year with a stellar performance despite the tough economic
environment. The past year has been challenging for the Indian economy with increasing interest
rates, high inflation and moderating GDP growth. However, the Indian consumer segment
continues to show strong resilience and maintains a robust growth momentum.

Your Company recorded a strong 20% revenue growth and 16% EBITDA growth compared to last
year. This was a direct result of our continued facus on premiumisation strategy which translated
in a strong performance by our mainline brands led by the premium brands. Our premium brands,
Magic Moments vodka and Morpheus brandy, continued on their high growth trajectories. In
particular, Magic Moments crossed the two million cases mark which is a milestone. Other
mainline brands including 8PM whisky and Old Admiral brandy aiso contributed significantly to the
growth with over 4.5 million and 3.3 million cases sales during the year.

Radico Khaitan's future key growth drivers are increasing volumes of premium brands across
various markets, selective acquisitions and joint ventures, developing export markets including
bottling arrangements abroad and driving operational efficiencies. Du ring the year, Radico Khaitan
acquired two whisky brands from Mysore based Yezdi Group. These brands will further strengthen
the Company's portfolio in the Southern markets. The Company is also taking initiatives to
promote its brands in international markets through exports and joint ventures. Radico Khaitan’s
international business division also started selling its premium brands including After Dark whisky,
Morpheus brandy and Magic Moments vodka through the duty free shops at Delhi International
Airport.

Over the years, Radico Khaitan has been able to create a number of industry leading brands. This
enables the Company to be optimally placed to benefit from its industry leadership position. Magic
Moments continues to capitalize on the fast growing vodka consumption in the country, while
After Dark and Morpheus received approvals for supply to the CSD and achieved encouraging sales
volumes. This further strengthened Radico Khaitan's leading position in the CSD market.

While we need your ongoing support in our new endeavours, | would like to take this oppbrtunity
to thank our shareholders for their continued confidence and support. We look forward to a
delivering shareholder returns and a bright future for your Company.

A Spirited Performance that Spells Class!

Dr. Lalit Khaitan
Chairman & Managing Director
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Vodka

Magic Moments: Zing up Life

What better way to zing up life than Magic Moments. india's
largest selling vodka was launched with an international
packaging. enabling the premium vadka to become 3 rage
gvernight. produced from the finest grains, its triple distilled
process is @ mark of absolute purity. Adding on 10 the
razzmatazz is an exciting array of flavours that make it smooth
as sitk. The spirit of Magic Moments is all about believing in
creativity, excellence and working with the leaders of
contemporary culture. No wonder, this amazing brand of vodka
is a millionaire hrand of Radico Khaitan and has won many
coveted laurels for the organization, including the Gold medal
for 4 consecutive years in the Monde selection.
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Whisky

One Life. Many Passions.
Why Wait?

When darkness descends, the only thing that's awake are your
temptations. Satiate those wild desires with the fine blend of
After Dark whisky. This premium category blend is renowned for
its bold taste and character and offers a delightful mix for
connoisseurs of taste. Just like the mystique of the night, enguif
your senses in a spirit of passion, adventure and clandestine
fantasies. Indulge in an energy that's spontaneous, quirky and
magical. Because a passionate affair with life begins only After Dark.
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BRANDY

Spirit of France captured in
a Goblet

For those who value taste, there's always the spirit of France.
Containing the texture of warm soils, fragrant scents and all the
richness of tropical weather, it's rich blend is truly irresistible.
Having achieved a gold medal at the prestigious Monde Selection
Award 2011, the world is taking note of its treasured legacy and
trademark excellence.

Without mention, Morpheus has become a leader in its segment
owing to a stringent process of creation and arduous maturity.
After all, with our patience and an eye for detail, attaining
perfection seems to be an easy task.







8PM

Whisky

Aath Ke Thaath

When the clock strikes 8PM, india’s *Thaath"reaches a crescendo.
No wonder, 8PM is the first brand in the liquor industry to make it
to the LIMCA book of records for selling one million cases in the
first year of its launch. Launched as a flagship brand of Radico, 8PM
exalts an unparalleled brand experience for its loyal customers,
giving them a taste of real “Thaath”. Made with the finest quality
grains, new 8PM is an epitome of lavishness and quality drinking.







8PM

Bermuda
XXX Rum

The Fun Begins

This dark Caribbean mystique is warm, full-bodied and blended
to perfection in matured old oak casks. 8 PM Bermuda Rum
delivers the classic Caribbean experience in every sip.







Whytehall

Whisky

A New Taste of Royalty

Whytehall - Classic Deluxe Whisky is a distinguished blend of
aged scotch malts and the finest Indian spirits, skillfully blended
to give a rich, warm, full-bodied whisky with a graceful after
note that lingers. It's intense, crisp character and unmistakable
classic style takes you into a league that's class apart. Truly a
classic, it's for those special moments that become an integral
part of our lives.







Old Admiral

Brandy

For Real Men Only

Old Admiral is a splendid brandy for real men of honour. Savour
a stimulating, rich blend of its fine taste and incredibly rich
sensations. A millionaire case brand for Radico, this classic beauty
is a testament of a royal taste and a passion to enjoy the good
things in life. Old Admiral brandy is on an exceptional growth
curve year after year and its consistent taste and lilting aroma is
_ensuting that real men admire the taste they always desired.







Rum

Contessa

For the Man of Courage

For men with a strong resolve, Contessa Rum is the perfect
antidote. One of the largest selling brand amongst defense
forces, Contessa Rum enjoys nearly 25% market share in the
segment. With a drive 10 constantly raise the bar, Radico is
continuously committed in delivering strong performance and
exceptional quality through its Spirits. Because the courage to
beat the odds is a trait that only a few possess.
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Dr. Latit Khaitan Bareilly Road Mys V. Sankar Alyar & Co.
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NOTICE
FOR THE 2BTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Natice is hereby given that the 28" Annual General Meeting of the Members of Radico Khaitan Limited (RKL), will be held on
Monday, 24™ day, September, 2012 at 1,00 p.m. at the registered office of the Company at Rampur Distillery, Baraeilly Road,
Rampur (U.P.} 244 901 to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:
1. Toreceive. consider and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company cansisting of the Balance Sheet as at 31* March

2012 and the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date including Notes thereto together with Reports of
the Diractors and Auditors thereon, :

2. To ageclare dividend.

3. To appoint a director in place of Dr. Raghupati Singhania, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offars himself for
re-appointment.

To appoint a director in place of Mr. K.S. Mehta, who retires by rotation and being eligible, ofters himselt for re-appointrent,

5. Toappoeint Auditors and to fix their remuneration and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification{s), the following resclution as an Ordinary Reaolution:
“RESOLVED that M/s. V. Sankar Alyar & Co., Chartered Accountants, having Registration no.109208W, be and are hereby
re-appointed as Auditors of the Company, to hold office fram the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion
of the next Annua! General Mesting of the Company on such remuneration as may ba fixed by the Board of Directors.”

By order of the Board
for Radlco Khaltan Limited

Sd~
Place : New Delhl Amit Manchanda
Date : 31.07.2012 Group Hoead - Legal &
Company Secretary

NOTES

(1) A member entitled to attend the mesting and vote thereat |s entitied to appoint a proxy to attend and vote Instead
of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Proxies In order to be valld should be duly
stamped, completed and signed and must be deposited at the Registered office of the Company not less than 48
hours before the commencement of the meeting. '

{2) Or. Raghupati Singhania and Mr. K.5. Mehta, Directors, shall retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
and being eligible offer themsetves for re-appointment. Brief resume of these Directors, nature of their expertise in
specific functional areas, names of companies in which they hotd directorships and mamberships / chaimanships of
Board Commitiees, shareholding and relationships between direciors inter-se as stipulated under Clause 43 of the
Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges in India, are provided in the Report on Corporate Gavernance forming
part of the Annuai Report. The Board of Directors of the Company commends thair respective re-appointments.

(3} Members are requested fo bring their Attendance Ship along with their copy of Annual Report 1o the Mesting.

{4) Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to write their Client 1D and DP 1D and those who hold
shares in physical form are requested to write their Folic Number in the attendance slip for attending the Mesting.

(5) In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the arder of names will be entitled
to vote.

(6) Relevant documents referred 1o in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection by the members at the Ragistered
Office of the Company on all working days, except Saturdays and Sundays, between 11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. upto the
date of the Mesting.
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(7) (a) TheCompany has already notified closure of Register of Members and Transfer Books from 19.08.2012 t0 24.08.2012
(both days inclusive) for determining the names of Members eligible for dividend on Equity Shares, if declared at
the Maeting.

(b) The dividend on Equity Shares, if declared at the Meeting, will be paid on or before 23,10.2012 to those Members
whose names shall appear on the Company's Register of Members on 24.00.2012. In respact of the sharaes held in
dematarialized form, the dividend will ba paid to members whose names are furnished by National Securities
Depository Ltd. and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. as beneficial cwners as on that date.

(B) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 205A (5) and 205C of the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has transferred the
unpaia or unclaimed dividends for the financial years 1995-86, 1997, 1998, 1999, 2000, 2001-2002, 2002-2008 and
2003-2004 1o the Investor Education and Protection Fund (the IEPF) established by the Central Government.

Dividends for the financial year ended 31.03.2005 and thereafter, which remain unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7
years from the date they became due for payment will be transferred by the Company to IEPF. Members who have not
so far encashed dividend warrant{s) for the aforesaid years are requested to sesk issue of duplicate warrant (s) by
writing to the Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents, M/s. Mas Services Lid.

Members are requested 1o note that no claims shall lie against the Company or the IEPF in respect of any amounts
which were unclaimed and unpaid for a period of saven years from the dates that they first became due for payment
and no payment shall be made in respect of any such claim. '

(9) Non-Resident Indian Members are requested to inform the Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents, M/s. Mas Services
Lid., immediately of:

(a) Change in their Residential status on return in India for permanent settlement.
(&) Particutars of their Bank Account maintained to Ingia with complete name, branch, account type, account number
and address of the Ban\l; with Pin Code Nurber, if not furnished earlier.
(10) G o

In view of green initiative measures taken by MCA to save papers, you are requested to provide your email id to the
Company or update id with your DP’s, so that all the communications along with notices and Annual Reports may be
sent through electronic mode. The shareholders may seek physical copy also.

By order of the Board
for Radico Khaltan Limited

Sd/-
Place : New Dalhi Amit Manchanda
Date : 31.07.2012 Group Head - Legal &
Company Secretary
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your Directors are pleased to presant their 28th Annuai Report
together with the auditad statement of accounts of the
Company for the year ended 31st March, 2012.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

(Rs. In Million)

Sales (inchiding sabes from arrangements

with other Distilleries / Botiling uniis) 30,107.19 24,778.54
Gross Profit (Defore depreciation and tex) 1,322.98 1,265.97
Froftt bafore tax .58 994.51
Profit after tax 835,50 728.01
Priot period adjusiments 0.00 0.00
Surplus brought forward from last year 536.47 333.74
Profit avallable for appropriation 1173.07 1,028.23
Transfer ko Genecal Reserve 300.00 8371
Proposed Dividend and tax thereon 123.39 107.86
Balance carrled forward 749,68 536.47

OPERATIONS REVIEW:

During the year, your Company continued to consolidate and
strengthen its position as one of the leading players in the
spirits industry in India. Our premium brands, Magic Moments
and Morpheus maintained their growth momentum with strong
year over year growth rates of 17.5% and 57.1%, respectively.
The Company's flagship brand, 8PM also recorded a
remarkable volume of 4.6 million cases with a growth rate of
13.4% yoar over year. Oid Admiral brandy crossed the 3 million
cases mark during the year representing a cotresponding
growth of 10.8%. However, Contessa rum, the leading rum
for the Canteen Stores Department {*CSD"), recorded a
marginal volume decline due the recent destocking policy of
the CSD. Ovarall, IMFL volumas growth was 9.9% driven by
mainline brands which grew by 11.1%. FY2012 export sales
registered a growth of 92.4% compared to the previous year
and accounted for 15.6% of Net Salas. The Company's exports
are growing in line with expectations and act as a natural
hedge for its foreign currency debt.

Sugar praduction upto the end of March 2012 in the current
sugar season was 23.2 million tons, an increase of 13%
compared to previous year, This growth was primarily driven
by an increase in the area under sugarcane production to
50.9 lakh acres in 2011-2012, as compared to 49.4 lakh acres
in 2010-2011. The total production for the current sugar
season is expected to be 26.0 million tons. Higher sugar
production during the 2011-2012 season is likely to result in
increased molasses production.

CAPITAL PROJECTS:

During the year under review, your Company made important
capital investments to increase capacities at its owned plants.
This included the setting-up of additional molasses storage
capacities, self bottle printing machines, a new bottling hall

and tetra pack machines. The Company alsomada a strategic
investment by acquiring select brands from the Yezdi Group.
All of these involved a total capital expenditure of Rs. 840
million. Thesa strategic initiatives will enable the Company to
ba optimally positionad to capitalize on the growing deman
in the spirits industry. :

FUTURE STRATEGY & GROWTH:

According to Euromonitor International, the indian alcoholic
drinks industry volume is forecasted to grow at a 2011-2016
CAGR of 10%. This was higher than the growth rates
registered across the rest of the Asia Pacific countries.
Premium products remained the growth driver in 2011. Rising
disposable incomes coupled with increasing social
acceptance of drinking in India are key reasons for this
demand growth.

Your Company's continuad focus on premiumization is clearly
refiected in the increasing share of premium brands in the
overal sales volumes. Premium brand revenues increased
from 28% of total IMFL sales in FY2011 to 31% in FY2012.

Your Company's new launches After Dark whisky and
Marpheus brandly continue to grow at a fast pace and are
raceiving favourable feadback from both the end consumers
as well as trade channals. In FY2012, both of these brands
were registered with the Canteen Stores Department (CSD}
and delivered encouraging sales volumes, This will further
strengthen Radico Khaitan's presence in the CSD.

Magic Moments vodka crossed the 2 million cases mark
during the year and continued to show strong volume growth.
This brand is well positioned to capitalize on the growih in
vocka consumption and popularity as the youth in indla
contirue to shift from brown spirits to white spirits, particularty
vodka. The flagship, 8PM whisky brand is performing in line
with our strategy and is expected to achigve desired growth
in the cusrent year.

During the year, your Company acquired Royal Lancer and
Elkays whisky brands from Mysore based Yezdi Group and
also took on long terrn lease their entire bottling capacity.
Both these brands are seling more than 0.5 million cases
primarily in Kamataka and Andhra Pradesh. These volumes
are expectsd to be strengthened by Radico Khaitan's
distribution network. This is a strategic acquisition and is
expected to reinforce the Company’s presence in Kamataka,
Andhra Praciesh and other South Indian states. Radico Khaitan
is also planning to install tetra pack machines at Yezdi
Distilieries, Mysore, which will increase the bottling capacity
further to meet production requirements in the state of
Karnataka.

Your Directors are confident that the Company has the most
effective strategies in place to capitalize on market growth,
capture market share and consolidate its leadership position.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE:

On July 25, 2011, the Company redearmed all of its remaining
$50 million, 3.5% Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds



("FCCE") that were issued in July and August 2006. The total
redemption of $44.22 million {inciusive of a redemption
premium of $10.31 million) was funded uging proceeds from
anew 7-year maturity External Commercial Borrowing (*ECB")
with a moratoriem period of 2 years. The repayment for the
ECBs will start in FY2014.

EMPLOYER STOCK OPTION SCHEME:

Radico Khaitan views the grant of employee stock options as
a mechanism to provide the employees with an oppornunity
to share in the growth of the Company and to reinforce long
term commitment, In this context, the Company implemanted
the Employeas ESOP Scheme in 2008.

The Compensation Committes, at its mesetings held on
27.4.2011, 2.8.2011 and 9.11.2011 alloted 16,000, 73,750
and 55,925 equity shares, respectively to the sligible
empiloyees, as per tha Employeses Stock Option Scheme 2006,

The particulars of the options as required by SEB! (ermployee
stock option scheme and employee purchase schems)
guidslines, 1999 are appended as Annexure ‘A’ and forms
part of this report.

DIVIDEND:

Your Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of 40%
on the paid-up capital of the Company. This equates to Rs.
0.80 per equity share of Rs.2/- each (face value) to be
appropriated from the profits of FY2012 subject to the approval
of the shareholders at the upcoming Annual General Meeting,
This increased dividend is to demonstrate our commitment
to enhancing value to our shareholders.

DEMATERIALISATION:

More than 97.62% of the shares of the Company have now
besn dematerialized. Your Directors would reguest all the
members who have not yet converted their holdings into
dematerialized form, to do so thereby facilitating tracing of
their shares. As per SEBI guidelines it is now mandatory that
the shares of a company to be in dematerialized form for
trading.

During the year under review, your Company has neither
invited nor accepted any fixed deposits from the public.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

During the year under review, the Company has no subsidiary
company. However, in the meeting heid on 7.2.2012 your
Board of Directors have approved the setting up of a Wholly
Owned Subsidiary (WOS) in Mauritius for investment in
Angola,

TRANSFER TO INVESTORS EDUCATION &
PROTECTION FUND:

Pursuant to Section 2054, of the Companies Act, 1956, as
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amended by the Companies (Amandment) Act, 1999,
unclaimed dividend for the financial year ended 31st
December, 1996, 31st December 1997, 31st December
1998, 31st December 1999, 318t December 2000, Jist
March 2002, 31st March 2003 and 31st March 2004 have
been transferrad to the Investors Education and Protection
Fund established by Central Government under Sub Section
(1) of Section 205 (C) during August, 2004, July 2005, August
2006, July 2007, July 2008, July 2009, August 2010 and
August 2011, respectively. Further, unclaimed dividend for
the financial year ended 31.3.2005 will be transferred to the
said fungd with in the stipulated tima as prescribed in the
Companies Act, 1956 read with rules made thereunder.

DIRECTORS:

Dr. Raghupati Singhania and Mr. K.S. Mehta shall retire by
rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company and being sligible, offer themselvas for
reappointment.

AUDITORS:

M/s. V. Sankar Aiyar & Co., Chartered Accountants, the
auditors of your company, retire at the conclusion of the
ensuing Annual General Maeting and being sligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

AUDIT REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 2011-12:

The obsarvations made in the Auditors Report are self
explanatory and therafore do not call for any further comments
under Section 217 (3) of the Companies Act, 1956,

COST AUDITOR:

During the year under review, your Directors had with the
approval of the central government, appointed Mr. S.N,
Balasubramanian, cost auditor, to carry out the cost audit in
respect of the distilery units of the Company for the year 2011-
2012. The cost audit for the year 2011-2012 shall be
compieted within stipulated time as prescribed in the
Companies Act, 1956 read with Cost Audit (Report) Rules,
2011,

ENVIRONBRENTAL PROTECTION MEASURES
TAKEN BY THE COMPANY:

In view of the Corporate Responsibilty on Environmental
Protection company has adopted number of measures to
improve in the fields of environment, safety and health.
Measures like standard operating proceduras, training
programmes for all levels of employeses regarding resource
conservation, housekeeping, Green Beklt development, onsite
emergency plan etc. have been taken.

CORPORATE S0CIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (CSR):

1. Nine Eye check up camps organized by the Company
through K.D. Daimia Eye Hospitat at 4 places {Ajitpur,



Chamrava, Nagar Palika Parisad and Bhot Village)
approx.2000 patiant got benafited of these camps.

Arrangement was made at various units of the company
{for health check of employess.

Academic Excellance Awards were given to the District
Topers for every education session.

Two primary schools are run by the Company at Panwaria
Village and Balmiki Mandir near City Ramiila Ground, Kosi
Mandir Road, Rampur.

2000 Blankets were distributed to the poor people of
nearby areas of Rampur in the Winter Season.

Financlal help was provided at Ajitpur Village for a
concrate road in the interior of Ajjpur Village and also
one Pulia (over-bridge) was constructed.

Three line trae plantations were done in and around 2km
of the factory boundary wail on the Judges Road.

5000 food packets digtributed to villagers in flood affected
area with District Administration.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIDILITY STATEMENT:

In terms of provisions of Secticn 217 (2AA) of the Companies
Act, 1956 (Act), your Directors confirm that:

i) iInthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed, along with
proper explanation relating to material departures,
wherever applicable.

The Directors have selected such accounting policies
and applied them consistently and made judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to giva
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company,
as at the end of the accounting year and of the profit of
the Company for that period.

i) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irragularities.

iv) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a
going concarn basis.

[}

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

in accordance with the provisions of Section 217 (2A), read
with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975,
the names and other particulars of employees are to be set
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outin the Directors' Report, as an addendum thereto. However,
as per the provisions of Section 219 (1} (b) {iv) of the
Companies Act, 1956, the Report and accounts, as therein
set out, are being sent to all members of the Company
excluding the aforesaid information about the employees. Any
member, who is interested in obtaining such particulars about
amployees, may write to the Company Secretary st the
Registered Office of the Company.

ENERGY CONSERVATYION, TECHNOLOQY
ABSORPTION AND FORRIGN EXCHANGEK
EARNINGS AND OUTGO: '

As required by the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in
the Report of Board of Diractors) Rules 1988, the relevant
information and data is given at "Annexure” - B.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR
FY2012:

Management Discussion and Analysis Raport, as required
under the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges
anclosad and forms part of this report.

conmunovmnmm' FORFY2012:

Report on Corporate Governance along with the certficate
of statutory Auditors, Mis. V. Sankar Aiyer & Co., confirming
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance, as
stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, forms
part of the Annual Report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors would lika to express their sincera appreciation
{o the investora and bankers for their continued support during
tha year. Your Directors extend their sincere gratitude to all
the Regulatory Authorities such as SEBI, Stock Exchanges
and other Central & State Government authorities and
agencies, Registrars for their support. Your Directors also
place on racerd their appreciation for the dedicated services
rendered by the empioyees at various levels and look forward
to their continued support in the future as well. We also take
this opportunity to thank ail our valued customers who have
appreciated our products.

For & on behalf of the Board
Sd/-
Piace : New Delhi Dr. Lalit Khaitan
Date : 31.7.2012 Chsirman & Managing Director



ANNEXURE-A

Disciosure as required under SEBI (Employee Stock Option Schame and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines,
1099 as on March 31, 2012

1 | Number of options grantéd

2 | The Pricing Formula First Grant ~ (for current efigible employees) who would have
comptatedatbasioneyearofswioeaaonmedateofme
grant - Per Option - 30% discount to the lower of -

(a) latest available closing price, prior to the date of the
meeting of the Compensation Committee in which options
are grantad, on the Stock Exchange on which the shares
ofmeCOrnpanYaraIistadandonmﬁchmereis highest
trading volume on the said date.

(b}avaragedﬂwaweelwhighandlowpdoesdmeequity
shares of the Company during 2 weeks preceding the
dateofgmﬂofoptimonme&ockExchangesofwhich
the shares are listed and on which there is highest trading
volume on the said date.

Subsequent Grants — {for future | new eligible employess)
Per option — 16% discount {o the latest availabla closing price,
prior to the date of the mesting of the Compensation
Committee in which options are granted, on the Stock
Exchange on which the shares of the Company are listed
and on which there is highast trading volume on the said date.

3. [ Number of options vested (During the year) 663,824
4 | Number of options exercised 1,568,663
5 | Total number of shares arising as a result of
exarcisa of options 1,568,663
6 | Number of options lapsed 1,425,013
7 | Variation in the terms of options Not Applicable
8 [ Money realised by exercise of options (Rs.) 127,370,565
g | Total Number of Options in force 656,324

B. Employea-wise details of options granted to:
(i) Senlor managerial personnel

No options have been granted during the current year

(i Employees who were granted, during any one year,
optons amounting to §% or more of the options
grantsd during the year

2

No options have baen granted during the current year




(i} Identified smployess who were grantad option,

during any one year, equal or exceeding 1% of

the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and
conversions) of the Company at the time of grant

No options have been granted during the curram year

C. Dlivted Eamings Per Share wmmmmmmummdmm_mhm.m
Accounting Standard (AS) 20

479
D. Thalmpuctontl‘npmﬁtsandMdmmrnlmmmodhglmhunubhm-
(Rs. '000)
Profit as reported : 636,599,423
Add - Intrinsic Vaiue Cost 804,173
Less - Fair Value Cost : 781,347
Profit as adjusted 634,913,903
Earning per share (Basic) as reportad 4.80
Eaming per share {Basic) adjusted A78
Eaming per share (Diluted) as reportad 4.79
Earning per share (Diluted) adjusted 4,78
E. Welghted average exercise price of Options whose
(a) Exercise price equals market price No options have bean
{b) Exercise price is greater than market price granted during the
{¢) Exercise price is less than market price current year
Weighted average fair value of options whosa
(a) Exercise price equals market price No options have been
{b) Exercise price is greater than market price granted during the
(c) Exercise price is less than market price current year

F, Wandnuumpﬂomuudtouﬂmanmtalrvalucolopﬂmmmdmmwﬂ:
No options have been granted during tha cutrent year
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ANNEXURE-B

Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchangs Eamings and Outgo:

The particuiars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as required
under section 217(1)(e} of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companias (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board
of Directors) Rules 1988, are as under:

A. Conservation of Energy:

(a)
1.

Energy conservation measures taken

installation and integration of chilling / air conditioning system in newly constructed printing plant along with BGG
control room and nearby area. This Chilling is generated through VAM which runs by Hot water coming out from
2X1.2 MW Bio gas gen sets in GSP. This reduces dependency on UPPCL power and consumption of diesel power
from DG sets with increased efficiency (better utilization of heat value available in bio gas). The total saving expected
approximately 3.00 Lac units / annum.

After technical evaluation and required modification by in-house the maximum ever Evaporation ratio of CBL boiler is
achieved from 3.60 Kg of steam / Kg of Rice husk to 3.80 Kg of Steam / Kg of rice husk (5.50%). This is above the
guaranteed norms provided by OEM,. This has saved the heat energy of Rice husk which otherwise go as wasts.
Installation of FRP cooling tower for Cogen-1 in place of conventicnal timber cocling tower to increase reliability and
saving of elactrical power '

During in-house auditing of energy conservation we have replaced three nos. old inefficlent motors by new EF-2
energy efficient motors each of rating 75 HP{1 Noj, 62HP(1 No) and 40HP(1no) installed on various pumps to save
electrical energy

5.  During in-house auditing various thermodynamic traps wers installed to save thermat energy in terms of steam.
(b) Additional Investments and proposals, if any, being Implemented for reduction of consumption of shergy:

1.

2
3
4.
5.
()

A o

Providing the shed on rice husk yard to save the rice husk from getting wet during rain (monsoon} and loosing heat
during buming in boiler and thereby reducing it's efiiciency,

Replacement of vacuumn pumps of farmentation plant of GSP with root air blowers. This modification will provide
saving of electrical power & process water.

Integration of water system of the plant to reduce water consumption in such way to reduce nmnning of Bore well and
reduction water as well as power consumgption in the plant.

Required modification in digester to have better refiability and efficiency to have more green energy.

Study on system integration of Air with in campus with a view to save electrical energy.

Impact of the measures at (a) and (b) above for reduction of snergy consumption and consequent Impact on
the cost of production of goods:

Expected saving from instaliation of Chiliing and air conditioning system is approx Rs.21.00 lacs during the year.
Expected saving from improverent in Evaporation ration of CBL boiler is approx Rs.150 lacs during the year.

A total saving towards replacement of FRP cooling tower in place of in efficient timber coaling achieved approx
Rs.3.3 lacs during the year.

A tofal saving towards replacement of old inefficient motors with new energy efficient motors is approx achieved
Rs.8.90 lacs,

B. Technology absorption:

Process Improvements:

1.

increase in the alcohol % from 12,0 % to 13.0 % in grain spirit fermentation by improving the process parameters in
the liquetaction & saccharification process regarding DS & Starch % & maintaining highest standards of hygienic
condition at fermentation house.

Reduced impurs cut % from 1.00 % to 0.90 % in grain spirit plant, saving approx. Rs.10 lacs.

Reduced steam consumption from 3.80 kg/BL ta 3.75 kg/BL in grain spirit process by using new improved enzyme
through low temperature cooking in liquefaction process. Steam saving approx. Rs.30 lacs for the year 2012-13.
Reduced power consumption from 0.32 kwh/BL to 0.31 kWh / BL in grain process. Total saving approx. As 40 lacs for
the year 2012-13.

Saving of steam & water through recycling of rectifier column spent lees, sealing water, process condensate as hot
water in liquefaction & saccharification process. Saving of 10.0 m3Mhr or 240 ma/day raw water & 18-19 ton steam /
day. Total saving through steam & water approx. Rs.70 lacs rupees for the year 2012-13.

C. Foreign Exchange saming and outgo:
Particulars of earnings and outgo of foreign exchange are given in other Notas on Accounts in serial no.43 (i) and (f) of the

accounts,
Sd/-
Place : New Delhl Dr. Lalit Khalten
Date: 31.07.2012 Chairman & Managing Director
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
THE INDIAN CONSUMER GROWTH STORY

Despite the current global aconomic environment, the Indian
consumer segment continues to show strong grawth
momentum. India moved from baing the tenth largest
sconomy in the world in 1991 fo the fourth largest in 2010 in
terms of Purchasing Power Parity, next only to the United
States, China and Japan. The Indian consumer market is
expected o grow 3.6 times from $991 billion to $3.6 triflion
between 2010 and 2020, faster than most other emerging
markets. Rising household incomes, wbanization and the
declina in the traditional joint-family structure are key
contributors to the growth.

Food, including spending on aicoholic beverages and
tobacco, currently account for 31% of the consumption
expenditurs in India, compared to 25% in China. This is
significantly higher than many other developed economies.
Food accounts for 16% of consurmer spend in Western Europe
and 9% in the US. Food, housing & consumer durables and
transport & communication are expected to be the top 3
categories, accounting for 65% of the total consumption in
India in 2020.

India’s consumption story remains intact despite moderation
in the GDP which has dropped to 6.5% in FY2012. Index of
Industrial Production {IIP} registered a slow growth of 2.8% in
FY2012. Except Elactricity which registered a growth of 8.2%,
the remaining two sectors - Mining and Manufacturing
witnessed moderated growth rates. Mining deciined by 2.0%
and Manufacturing grew by 2.9% y-o-y in FY2012,

The per capita income? is estimated to have increased by
13.6% to $1,100 compared to $970 in the previous year. In
2011, sales volumes of the IMFL industry were approximately
2,223 mitlion liters or 247 million cases®, a growth of 11.9%
compared to the prior vear. This was higher than the growth
rafes registered across the rest of the Asia Pacific countries.
Premium products remained the growth driver in 2011, Sports
events such as the 2011 Cricket World Cup, IPL {Indian
Pramier Leagua) and F1 Grand Prix led to an increase in on-
trade sales in India. This resulted in Indian spirits companies
spending mora on innovative packaging and media
communication, Rising disposable incomes coupled with
drinking becoming more socially acceptable are aiso the key
roasons for the increase in sales volumes,

Brown spirits constituted the largest segment with whisky,
brandy and dark rum accounting for 95% of the market, by
both volume and value. Total volume sales of brangdy grew
by 21% in 2011 which was mainly driven by the demand in
the South Indian markets. Rum shows a higher growth
potantial than other categories of spirits. However, there is a
small ghift from brown spirits to white spirits especially vodka.
Younger generations In colleges and the corporate worid
increasingly prefer white spirits. The vodka market showed a

robust growth of 21% during the year with 8% (vs. 5% in 2010)
of the total volume sales being flavored vodka.

Sales of alcoholic drinks continue to be driven by urban
consumption in the country. In 2011, urban areas accounted
for 64% of volume sales through ofi-trade channels.

Sales of Spirits by Category (Volume): 2011

White Spirits
5%

59%
Brandy
17%

Rum
19%

Sales of Spirits by Category (Valus): 2011

White Spirits
5%

Whisky
) Brandy
2%
Rum
14%

There wera numerous product launches in 2011 by both global
and domestic players, across ditferent price points and
categories. Many domestic players also re-faunched their
flagship products with & new look to attract new customers.

Average realization increased by 5% during 2011. High excise
duties coupled with the increasa in the input costs (including
ENA costs) have led 1o an increase in unit prices. Increases
in the glass bottle prices have jed manufacturers to look to
innovative methods of packaging to reduce costs.

The 2011-12 sugar crushing season In India was strong with
total sugar production of 26 million tonnes. Higher sugar
production during the 2011-12 season resulted in increased
molasses production. During FY2012, there was significant
oft-take of molasses due to demand from oil marketing
companies for the ethanol blending program, which resulted
in higher ENA prices. ENA prices during the year increased
by 11%.

The alcoholic beverage industry Is a working capital intensive
industry. As per the Excise duty structure prevalent in various
states in India, the industry is subject to very high rates of
duties. A company has to fund the excise duty upfront at the
time of dispatches of goods and hence working capital cycle
has to be considered with reference to Gross Sales (i.e.
including Excise duties and taxes).

1 Euromonitor International, March 2012

2 Press Information Bureaw; Converted into § using exchanga rate
of 865

3 Each case represents 9 lters



INDUSTRY OUTLOOK

Demant for spirits in India is expected to grow at a 10% CAGHR
during 2012 - 2018. During this period, volume sales are
expected to reach 3.6 billion liters or 385 million cases. Key
drivers of this growth include higher per capita incomes,
increasing social acceptance of alcohol in India, brand
exposure, availability and the shift towards branded spirits
by country liquor consumers. Single malt Scotch whisky and
vooka are expected to lead total volume growth with a 19%
CAGR sach during 2012-16. The growth in both these
categories will be due to increasing urbanisation and young
adults reaching the age to be eligible to drink. Manufacturers
are launching products with innovative packaging and adding
a premiumn element to their products. The increasing number
of ciubs and discotheques in India is expected to drive on-
trade sales.

Urban markets are expected to experience steady growth
due to lifestyle changes, rising disposable incomes and
changes in social values which wilt lead to greater acceptance
of drinking alcohal, especially among the younger population.
Tier | and tier |l cities are expecied to show accelerated levels
of growth as companies are focusing on retail channeis
including bars and restaurants across these towns apart from
investments in infrastructure, supply chain and bottling
faclities.

Premiumisation is expectad to gather momentum in the market
over the next two to three years. Domestic manufacturers are
expected to add more premium brands to their portfolios.

Unit prices are expected to increase during the forecast
period. This increase is mainly due to the rise in prices of raw
materigis and transportation costs. The increase in taxes and
excise duties will also be passed onto end consumers which
will lead to an increase in unit prices.

Consolidation is expected to continue in the foracast period,
with companies extending their production capabilities across
india through mergers and acquisitions. Growing demand
for international and niche brands is expected to result in
partnerships between domestic and international companies.
With continued expansion by national and internationat
playars, regional players in beer and wine may become
targets for acquisition.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

Radico Khaitan's future key growth drivers are increasing
volumss of premium brands, price increases in the key
markets, selective acquisitions and joint ventures, developing
export markets including bottling arrangements abroad and
driving operational efficiencies.

Focus on Premium Brands

Radico Khaitan is set to further strengthen its position as one
of the largest spitits companies in India. Six new brands have
been launched over the past decade, which is the highest

arnong any other indian spirits company. The Company also
launchad three brands in past three years, all of which are in
the premium categories.

The recent brand launches in the premium category are in
line with the Company's well established premiurmization
strategy. This will result in market share gains in both the
brown spirits and the fastest growing white spirits segmert.
The success of Magic Momaents, in the semi-premium vodka
sagment, has reinforced this strategy and resulted in the
subsequent launch of other brands in the premium segment.
In FY2008, the Company launched Morpheus, a super
premium brandy and in the following year Afier Dark, a
premiwm whisky.

Price Increases In Various Markets

Radico Khaitan received price increases in the CSD and some
of the kay liquor consuming states. This is expected {o result
in overall revenue growth and margin improvement in the
coming year. The Company also expects price increases in
other territories during the year.

Cost Optimization

Radica Khaitan has a significant distilation capacity of 150
rmillion litres which makes the Company self dependent for
its ENA requiksments 1o a large extent and also provides a
cushion against volatility in the ENA prices, The Company
has a capacily to store 3 months' equivalent of its molasses
requirements. This insulates the Company against short term
fluctuations In molasses prices. Radico Khaitan has alsotaken
other steps to optimize cost structure. This includes
rationalisation of the bottle supplies and diversification of its
supplier base thereby limiting the net cost impact.

Enhance Base In Seuthom States

South India is the biggest liquor consuming market compared
to other parts of the country. The recent acquisition of two
whisky brands in South india will further strengthen the
Company's portfolio in the Southern markets.

Exports amd New Intemational Tie-ups

The Company at its board meeting has recently received
approval to irwest $10 million in a wholly owned subsidlary
that it plans to set up in Mauritius. This wholly-owned
subsidiary will promote its international business including
exports and investments in joint veriture companies in Africa,
During the year, Radico Khaitan also started selling its
premium brands including After Dark whisky, Morpheus
brandy and Magic Moments vodka through the duty free
shops at Deihi International Airport.

Radico Khaitan has an agresment with Suntory of Japan to
market and distribute two of its super premium Scotch brands
in India; Yarnazaki 12 YO single malt and Hibiki 17 YO blended
whisky. Further collaborations with international players
include Emest & Julio Galle {California) for distribution of their
wines in India. Radico Khaitan offers a distribution platform



and is a preferred partner in India for their premium whiskies
and wines.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND MARKETING

Radico Khaitan continued to demonstrate a strong
performance despite a difficult economic environment with
sales growth of 19.7% in FY2012 and Net Profit growth of
11.4%. '

The Company's constant focus on premiumization is clearly
reflected by the increasing share of premium brands In overall
sales volumes. Premium brands sales revenue Increased from
28% of total IMFL sales in FY2011 to 31% in FY2012. Magic
Moments continues to be the targest selling vodka in India
and drives the vodka category sales in the country. Sinca its
launch, the brand has been proactively engaging consumers
through presence on TV media, print, outdoor and digital
medium, coupled with consumer engagement on the ground
tovel. The sustained activities have resulted in the brand
registering sales exceeding two million cases with a y-o-y
volume growth of 17.5%.

After Dark, the Company's recently launched premium whisky
continued to receive favorable feedback from end consumers
as well as the frade channels. The brand has an innovative
packaging and is the first to be with direct printing on the
bottie and canister in the premium segment. With support of
a complete 360 degree communication plan for the brand,
including a mix of TV, digital medium and extensive vigibility
drive in on- premise and off-premise outlets, it has established
its presence in the premium whisky segment.

Morpheus Brandy with a y-c-y volume growth of 57.1%,
confinued to dominate the premium brandy segment in South
India and is the iargest selling brand in the segment. The
Company's presenca in the South was further strengthenad
with the acquisition of two whisky brands.

Other mainline brands inciuding 8PM whisky and Old Admiral
brandy aiso contributed significantly to the growth. The
flagship brand, 8PM whisky registered a strong volume growtit
of 13.4% y-o-y, with a sala in excess of 4.5 milion cases,
white Old Admiral Brandy sold aver 3.3 million cases sales
during the year.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The details of the financial performance of the Company
appear in the Balance Sheet, Profit & Logs Account and ather
financial statements attached with this report. Please refer to
the Directors’ Report for highlights.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Audit Committee of the Board meets regularly to review
the adequacy of internal controls and internal audit findings.
When required, senior managament is -advised on the
corrective policies to be adopted by the Company.

Intemal control systems and procedures at all levels are a
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high priority for Radico Khaitan. These systems are
continuously reinforced through an ongaing review by both
highly qualified financial and technical professionals. The
internal audit report is regularly reviewed by senior
management and cotreciive measures, wherever required,
are implemented immedistely. Senior management is satisfied
that these intemal control systems comply with the highest
standards.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Radico Khaitan is focussad on identifying and recruiting the
best professionals across all parts of the organization.
Furthermore, ongoing empioyes training is an integral part of
our strategy to ansure the highest levels of productivity. This
approach to human resource management has resuited in
extramely low fabor turnover and reflects the constructive
ralationship betwaaen the Company and its employses.
There are no financial or commercial transactions that have
resulted in a potential conflict of interest betwaen sanior
management and the Company.

RISK AND CONSIDERATION
Regulstory Environment

The liquor industry is a regulsted and highty taxed industry.
Excise duty on liquor is a State levy, not a Central levy and
sach State controls the excise duty structure. Furthermare,
interstate sale of IMFL attracts export duty in the state of
manufacture and import duty in the State of sale. Hence, &
company needs to have a manufacturing facility or bottling
unit in each state to be able to make sales In that state.

Distribution of IMFL in India is regulsted in some states. In
~70% of the states, it is through Goverrment controlied
agencies and in ~30% of the distribution Is through open
auctions.

Due to WTO commitments, Central Government has been
conslstently reducing the custom duties on Bottled in Origin
spirits (BHD). However this is counter balanced by the State
Governments lavying counterveiling duties on Bottled in Origin
praducts, thus offering some measure of protection for the
domastic industry. Since these BIO products are in the higher
MRP ranges, our Company is not fikely to face any major risk.
Despite the fact that almost two thirds of the tetail price can
be allocated to duties and taxes, the industry is growing ata
steady pace of around 10% every year.

GEOGRAPHIC RISK

fadico Khaitan's business has multi locational facilities
thereby minimizing any potential geographical risk. An
increasing focus on export markets over the coming years
will further help to broaden geographic business exposure.

CURRENCY RISK

Your Company has a portfolio of foreign currency debt for
which it is subject to currency end interest rate risk. The



Company has adopted risk management practices to monitor
and address s forgign currency exposure. The increasing
export portfolio acts as a natural hedge for the Company's
fareign currency debt.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Staternents in this Management Discussion and Analysis
describing the Company's objectives, projections, estimates
and expectations may be forward looking staternents within
the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results
might differ substantially or materially from those expressed
or implied important developments that could affect the

Company's operations include unavaitabiity of finance at
competitive rates global or domestic or both, reduction in
number of viable infrastructure projects, significant changes
in political and economic environment in India or key markets
abroad, tax laws, litigation, exchange rate fiuctuations, interest
and other costs,

For and on behalf of the Board
Sd
Place : New Delhl Dr. Lailt Khaltan
Date :31.07.2012 Chalrman & Maneging Dirsctor



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR
2011-2012

A,

(a)

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON THE CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

Since inception, Radico has inculcated a strong culture of values, ethics and integrity. Radico strives to be a
reliable and trusted organization in building and maintaining relationships with shareholders, lenders, employees
and public at large.

Emphasis is laid on striking a balance between individual interests & corporate goals while operating within
accepted norms of propriety, equity, fair plan and sense of justice. Under good Corporate Governance we
are committed to ensure that all functions of the Company are discharged in a professionally sound, accountable
and competent manner.

Over the years, govermance processes and systems have been strengthened at Radico. In addition to complying
with the statutory requirements, effective governance systems and practices towards improving transparency,
disclosures, internal controls and promotion of ethics at work place have been institutionalized.

The Board of Directors believes in upholding the highest standards of accountability and actively participates
in overseeing risks and strategic management. The Board fully supports and endorses corporate govemance
practices in accordance with the provisions of Clause 49 of the listing agreements. The Company has complied
with the requirements of the said Clause and listed below is the status with regard to the same. :

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Composition, Meetings and Attendance during the financial year 2011-2012:

The Board of Directors of Radico Khaitan Ltd. comprises seven Directors. Out of seven Directors, four Directors
are Non-executive Independent Directors, being more than half of the Board. The three executive Directars

inciude Chairman & Managing Director, Managing Director and Whole time Director.

The independent directors have confirmed that they satisfy the criteria prescribed for an independent director
as stipulated in Clause 49 (1) (A) (iii) of the listing agreements.

The directors bring to the Board a wide range of experience and skills. Brief profiles of the directors are set
out efisewhere in the annual report. The composition of the Board is in conformity with Clause 49 (i) (A) of the
listing agreements. Details of the Board of Directors interms of thelr directorships / memberships / membarships
in committess of public companias {excluding Radico) are as under:
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Exacutive Or. Lalit Khaitan

Promoter Chaiman &
. Managing Director

2. Exscutive Mr. Abhishek Khatan - Wil il 4 No pe0es | 0.08
Promoter Managing Director '

3 Executive Non | Mr. K.P. Singh 1 Nil 2 Yes 1760 0.01
Indepencert | Whole time Director

4, Non-executive | Mr. K.S. Mehta
tndependent Chartered Accourtant 4 2 4 No 1500 | 0.001

5. |Non-executive | Dr. Raghupati Singhania "B 1 1 No NiL -
Independant Industrialist

6. Non-executiva | Mr. Ashutosh Patra Ni Nil 4 No NIL
Independent Solicitor & Legal Expert

7. Non-executive | Mr, Mahendra Kumar 6 2 4 Yes NIL .
Indepandent Doogar

Chartered Accountant

{1) Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and companies under Section 28 of the Companies Act, 1956 are
exciuded for the above purposes.

{2) Only Audit Committee and Sharehoiders' Grievance Committes are considered for the purpose of Commitiee position
as per Listing Agreement.

(3) None of the Directors was a Member in more than 10 Committses nor a Chairman in more than five Committees
across all companies in which he was a Director. '

Tenure:

The non-executive directors of the Company are liable fo retire by rotation. One-third of the said directors are liable to retire
every year and if eligible, offer themselves for re-appoiniment.

Board Meetings:

The meetings of the Board of Directors are normally held at the Company's Corporate office in New Delhi. Mestings are
generally scheduled well in advance and the notice of each Board meeting is given in writing to each director. The Board
meets at least once a quarter 1o review the quarterly performance and financigl results of the Company.

The Company Secretary in consultation with the Chairman and the whole-time director prepares a detailed agenda for the
meetings. The Board is provided with the relevant information as stipulated in Clause 49 of the listing agreements. The
members of the Board have access o all information of the Company. The Board papers, agenda and other explanatory notes
are circulated to the directors in advance. The members of the Board are also free to recommend inclugion of any matter in the
agenda for discussion. Senior management is invited to attend the Board mesetings so as to provide additiona) inputs to the
items being discussed by the Board. The minutes of each Board / Committee meeting are recorded in the Minutes Book.

During the financial year 2011-2012, four Board Meetings of Radico were held on 18.5.2011, 2.8.2011,9.11.2011 and 7.22012.
{b) Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel:

The Board has approved the Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company.
This code has been displayed on the Company's website viz. www.radicokhaitan.com. All Board Members and Senior
Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct. A declaration signed by the Managing
Director to this effect is enciosed at the end of this Report.

(¢) Pecuniary relationships of transaction with the Gompany of Non-executive directors:

The Non-executive directors had no pecuniary relationship of wansactions with the Company in their personal capacity
during the financial year 2011-2012. : .



{d)

Details of remuneration to al! the directors In the financlal year 2011-2012:
(1} Executive Directors: - (Rs. In lacs)

Or. Lalit Khaitan
Mr. Abhishek Khaitan
Mr. K.P. Singh

* Contributions to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund.
(2) Non-Executive Directors:

=

oo

i Mr K.5. Mehta ' 65

1. .
2. | Mr. Ashulogh Pafra__ 1.65.000-
3. [ Dr. Raghupati Singhanla 20,000/
4. Mr. Mahendra xumar Doogar 1,35,00KY-

Non executive directors were paid sitting fees of Rs.10,000/- (Upto 1.8.2011) and Rs.15,000/- w.ef. 2.8.2011 for
attending each meetings of the Board and Rs.10,000/- for Committees thereof and reimbursament of iocal conveyance.

Non exacutive directors were not paid any amount by way of salary, perquisites and other benefits including stock
options except the above menticned sitiing fees.
{3) Reappointment of Directors retiring by rotation:

Dr. Raghupati Singhania and Mr. K.S. Mehta retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company
and being eligible offers themselvas for reappointment.

A brief resume of Directors seeking appointment | re-appointment in the forthcoming AGM in terms of Clause 49 V1 (A)
of Listing Agreement is given below:

Data of Birth 08.12,1946 15.01.1946
Date of Appointment 28.01.2003 10.03.2003
Expertise in special functional areas industriglist with over Leading Chartered Acoourtant
34 years of axperience :
Qualifications BSc, FBIM {LON), FCA, A.C.LS. {London)
F.Jng.D (LON)
List of outside directorship as on (1) Fenner {India) Ltd. (1) Trangport Corporation of Inclia Ltd.
31st March, 2012 {2) JKI Employees {2) Medpat Finance Limited
Welfare Association Lid.
(3) JK Tyre & Industries Ltd. (3} Kothari Industried Management Company Lid.
(4} JK. Lakshmi Cement Lid. (4) Biue Coast Hotels & Resorts Lid.
{5) Bengal & Assam Company Lid.
(6) J.K. Agri Genetics Ltd.
(1Y D.CM. Engineering Lid.
(8) Henry F. Cockilt & Sons Ltd.
Chairman / Member of the Committee (1) JK, Lakshmi Cement Lid. (1) Transport Corporation of India Ltd.
of other companies as on {Audit Committes - {Audit Committes -
31st March, 2012 Member, Shareholders'finvestors’ Mamber, Shareholders investors' Grievance
Grisvance Committee-Chairman) Committee- Chalrman}
Nil {2) Blue Coast Holsls & Resorts Ltd.
(Audit Committee - Member, Shareholders/
Investors Grisvance Commiltee - Member,
Remuneration Committes - Chairman}
No. of shares held NIL Nil
n Private Limiled Companies, Foreign Companies and companies under Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956 are excluded for
the above purposes.
() Only Audit Committee and Sharsholders' Grievance Commities are considered for the purpose of Committes position as per
Listing Agreement.

(3)

None of the Directors was a Member in mare than 10 Committsas nor a Chairman in more than five Commitices across all
companies in which he was a Director.
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C. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2011-2012:

(1

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committea soiely comprises independent Directors. The Audit Committee of the Board of Diractors of the Company
is constituted in conformity with the requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreemant, as well as Section 292 A of the
Companies Act, 1956.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee, inter-afia, include:

(a)
(b)

(c)

()

To oversee the financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information.

To review with management, quarterly, haif yearly and annual financial statements and ensure their accuracy and
correciness before submission to the Board.

To review with management and intemal auditors, the adequacy of internal control systems, approving the internal
audit plans and reviewing the sfficacy of their function, discussion and review of periodic audit reports including
findings of internal investigations.

To recommend the appointment of the internal and statutory auditors and fixing their reruneration,
To hoid discussion with the statutory and intemal auditors,
Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson, Meetings and attendance during the year:

Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar Chairman of the Comnntittes
Mr. Ashuiosh Patra Member 4
Or. Raghupati Singhania Membar 1

Psrmanant invitoes:
M/s. Grant Tharnton Internal Auditors

Representatives of M/s. V. Sankar Statutory Auditors
Aiyar & Co., Chartered Accountants
Mr. S.N. Balasubramanian Cost Auditors

{b)

(c)
(d)

(e
]

All members of the Audit Committee are Independent, Non executive directors. By definition Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar
and Dr. Raghupati Singhania shall be considered to be persons having Accounting or related Financial Managerent
expertise and Mr. Ashutosh Patra being a Legal expert, shall be considered as financialty literate.

Four Audit Commitiee Meetings were held during the year. i.e. on 18.5.2011, 2.8.2011,9.11.2011 and 7.2.2012.

The mestings were scheduled well in advance. In addition to the Members of the Auckt Committee, the meetings of Audit
Committes were attsnded by Heads of Finance and Internal Auditors, Stafutory Auditors and Cost Auditors and other
Executives, who were considered necessary for providing inputs to the Committee.

Quorum: Two independent Directors.
Secretary to the Committee: The Company Secretary acted as the Secretary to the Commitiee.



(2) SHAREHOLDERS’ GRIEVANCES COMMITTEE:

(@)

{b)

e}
{d)
{3)
(@)

{h)

(c)
(d)
®
{a)

Shareholders' Grievances Committes of the Board of Directors of the Company was constituted to look into the
redressal of shareholders and investors complaints.

Terms of Reference:

The Terms of Referance of Shareholders’ Grievances Committee included investigation into any matter relating to
redressal of shareholders' / investors' complaints pertaining to transfer of shares, non-raceipt of Balance Sheet, non
receipt of daclared dividend, duplicate share certificates, dematerialisation / rematerialisation of shares etc.

Composition, Chairman, Meetings and Attendance during the year 2011-2012:

The Sharsholders Grievances Commitiee was composed of the following directors from time to time:

Mr. Ashutosh Patra
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar
Mr. K.P. Singh

Four meetings of the Commitiee were held during the said year on 18.5.2011, 2.8.2011, 8.11.2011 and 7.2.2012.
Quorum: Two Directors.

EMPLOYEES COMPENSATION COMMITTEE {NON MANDATORY):

Terms of Reference:

The Terms of Reference of Committes of Directors included grant of stock options to the eligible smployees, aliotment
of shares to employees on exercise of their stock options.

Composition, Chairman, Meetings and Attendance during the year 201 1-2092:

81, No.i'

1. Mr. Ashutosh Patra Chairman
2. Mr. K.S. Mehta Member
Mr. K.P. Singh Mernber

Three meetings of the Committee were held during the yeas on 27.4.2011, 2.8.2011 and 9.11.2011.
Quorum: Two Directors.

FINANCE COMMITTEE: (NON MANDATORY)

Terms of Refarence:

The Terms of Reference of Finance Committes included for raising of loans from Banks, Financial Institutions, NBFCs
or any other enfities.
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{p} Composition, Chairman, Meetings and Attendance during the year 2011-2012;

te)

{d)
(5}

(6)

@)

(@

7. S R DA 1 4 5
1. Mr. Abhishek Khaitan Chairman a8
2. Mr. K.P. Singh Member 8
3. Mr, Ashutosh Patra Member NIL

Eight meetings of the Committee were held during the year on 30.4.2011. 18.6.2011, 7.7.2011, 14.9.201 1, 24.10.2011,
28.12.2011, 21.2.2012 and 12.3.2012.

Quorum: Two Directors.
NAME AND DESIGNATION OF THE COMPLIANCE OFFICER:

Mr. Amit Manchanda

Group Head - Lega! &

Company Secretary

Radico Khaitan Limited

Plot No. J-1, Block B-1, Mohan Co-operative Industrial Area, Mathura Road,
New Delhi - 110 044,

Tel. Nos.40975400/444/500/555, Fax Nos.41678841-42

Emall: manchandaa@radico.¢o.in

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES, ENQUIRIES, COMPLAINTS:

The Company has a designated e-mail address, info@radico.co.in to enabls its investors to post their grisvances
and monitor its redressal. It is the endeavor of the Company to provide prompt, sfficient and satisfactory services to
its esteamed Sharsholders. It takes special care in answering the queries of Shareholders within the shortest possible
time frame in collaboration with the registrars M/s. Mas Services Ltd.

During the year, the Company received a fotal of 693 correspondance from its investors, capital market intermediaries
and statutory / regulatory authorities including e-mails inter alia, requesting for changes to their address and / or bank
account particulars, dematerialization of shares, transfer / transmission of shares, non-receipt of dividend warrants /
sub-divided share certificates and other services relating to the securities issued and allotted by the Company.

The Company provided Shareholder services in the following time frame:

Share Transfars
Demat of Shares

Dividend revalidation / issue of Divigend Drafts
Change of Address/ Bank Mandate

General queries

Green initiative

In view of green initiative measures taken by MCA to save papers, you are requested to provide your email id to the
Company or update id with your DP's, so that all the communications along with noticas and Annual Reports may be
sent through electronic mode. The shareholders may seek physical copy also.

Unclaimed Suspence Account

The Company has transferred 6846 unclaimed shares to the unclaimed suspense account. Details are given as
under:

() Qutstanding shares lying in the unciaimed suspense account at the beginning of the year: 891200

(i) Number of sharaholders who approached the issuer for transfer of shares from the 14
Unclaimed Suspense Account during the year:

(ifiy Number of sharaholders to whom shares were transferred from the unclaimed suspense 14
account during the year:

(iv) Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares lying in the unclaimed 884354,
suspense account at the end of the year;



{9) At the beginning of the financial yeer, there was no investor complaint that was unresolved. During the year, the
Cornpany received 11 investor complaints, all of which were resolved and as such there was no unresolved investor
complaint as at 31* March 2012,

{10} Share Dealing Code:

Comprehensive guidelines advising and cautioning the Management and staff on the procedure ta be followed while
dealing with the shares of the Company are in place, in light of SEBI (Insider Trading) Amendment Regulations, 2002.
The Code of Conduct and corporate disclosure practices framed by the company helps in ensuring compliances
with the said Regulations. The code prescribes the detailed procedures and guidslines to be adopted while dealing
in the securities of the Company. The code is applicable fo all directors, senior employees and their dependants. The
said persons are prohibited from dealing in the securities of the Company during the restricted trading periods
notified by the Company, from time to time and whilst in possession of any unpublished price sensitive information
relating to the securities of the Company.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS OF RKL:
{a) Annual General Meetings (last three):

15.09.2009

Rampur Distillery Bareilly Road
Rampur - 244 901 (U.P.).

2. 09.09.2010 o~

3. 09.09.2011 -do-

{b) No Postal Ballots were used / Invited for voting in above meetings.
(¢) Three Special resolution were passed during the vear 2011-12;
DISCLOSURES:

(a) Related party transactions:

The Company has not entered into any transaction of material nature with promoters, directors or the management,
their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

Transactions with related parties entered into by the Company in the normal course of business were placed before
the Audit Committee. There were no material individual transactions with related parties, which were not in the
normal course of business nor were there any material transactions with related parties or others, which were not on
an arm's length basis. Details of related party transactions entered into by the Company in the normal course of
business are ingluded in the notes forming part of the financial statements.

{b) Compliances by the Company:

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges, SEB! and other statutory authorities on all
matters refated to capital markets during last 3 years. There were no non-complfince remarks by Stock Exchanges
or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter relating to capital markets during the Jast three years.

{c) Accounting Standards:

The Company has complied with the applicable Accounting Standards notified by the Companies {Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006. The financial statements for the year have been prepared in accordance with and in
compliance of the revised Schedule VI notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA),

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:
{a) Quarterly Resuits:

Quarterly results oHhe-Gempany-werestaier-onmeserssisytinmBordepiirosumiivm it s er—

quarter, audited annual accounts for the financial year were taken on records within 60 days of the end of financial



year and were submitted 10 the Stock Exchanges in terms of the requirements of the Clause 41/ 45 of the Listing
Agreement.

Quarterly results of the Company have been displayed on the Company's web site www.radicolhaltan.com
Quarterly results taken on record and published in the newspapers during 2011-2012:

03.08.2011 04.08.2011

30th June, 2041 02.08.2011
30th September, 2011 09.11.2011 10.11.2011 11.11.2011
31st December, 2011 07.02.2012 08.02.2012 09.02.2012
31st March, 2012 30.05.2012 31.06.2012 01.06.2012
(b) Presentations were made to institutional investors / analysts during the year 2011-2012 about the activities of the

(e}

{d)

Company and its financial periormance. Corporate presentation is dispiayed on the Company’s website.
Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year 2011-12 has been reviewed by the Audit Commitiee at its
meeting held on 31.07.2012 and approved by the Board at its mesting held on 31.07.2012 and forms part of the
Annugl Report. :

Investor's Relation: The Company's web site contains a separate dedicated section “Investor Retations” where
general information 10 the shareholder is available. In terms of the directive of the Stock Exchanges, the Company
had appointed M/s. Mas Services Ltd., T-34, 2nd Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase - 1I, New Dethi - 110 020, as the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company since March 2003.

Address for correspondence:

(1) For Retail Investors (2) For institutional investors
Mr. Amit Manchanda Mr. Mukesh Agarwal
Group Head - Legal & Vice President - Finance &
Company Secretary Treasury
Plot No.J-1, Block B-1 Plot No.J-1, Block B-1
Mohan Co-operative Mohan Co-operative
fndustrial Area Industrial Area
Mathura Road Mathura Road
New Delhi - 110 044, New Delhi - 110 044,
Tel No.: 011- 40975420 Tel. No. 011-409756423, 8811340154
email: manchandaa@radico.co.in email; agrawaim@radico.co.in

G. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER'S INFORMATION

(a)

(b}

{c)

(d)

Date, Time and Venue of the Annual Generai Meeting (AGM):

The Date, Time and Venue of the AGM has been indicated in the Notice convening the AGM which is annexed to the
Armnual Report. .

Financial calendar 2012-2013 {tentative):

Tentative Schedule: .

Financig! reporting for the quarter ending June 30, 2012 By Mid August 2012
Financial reporting for the half year ending September 30, 2012 By Mid November 2012
Financial reporting for the quarter ending December 31, 2012 By Mid February 2013
Financial reporting for the quarter and year ending March 31, 2013 By End May 2013
Annual General Meeting for the year ending March 31, 2013 By End September 2013
Date of Book Closure:

Book Closure dates have been provided in the Notice convening the AGM forming part of this Annual Report.
Dividend Payment date: ' ‘
Dividend payout date has been provided in the Notice convening the AGM forming part of this Annual Report,



(e) Listing on Stock Exchanges:
The Company's securities are listed on the following stock exchanges:

b,

Bombay Stock Exchiange Ltd.{BSE)

Phiroze Jesjeabhoy Towers, Dalal Streat, Mumbai - 400 Q01.
2. National Stock Excrange of India Ltd. (NSE)

Exchange Plaza, 5th Ficor, Plot no.C/1, G Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex,
Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051.

(i Stock Code:
Bombay Stock Exchange Lid.(BSE) - 532497
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) - RADICO
ISIN for dematerialization - INES44FD1028 -

{g) Market Price Data:
Performance of RKL Shares at Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. and Natlonal Stock Exchange of India Ltd.:

April, 2011 147.85 129.60 705541 148.90 129.10 2577376
May, 2011 145.75 130.60 397669 146.50 130.20 1204883
June, 2011 134.90 127.00 1379122 140.50 125.00 3472476
July, 2011 137.00 124.00 792532 136.90 125.10 2167878
August, 2011 137.90 125.00 856204 137.50 124.00 1831286
September, 2011| 131.00 119.75 1902075 130.90 119,76 3491481
Qctober, 2011 130.00 119.00 1080325 127.00 118.80 1760832
November, 2011 | 127.50 111.95 1427683 127.40 112.20 2808265
December, 2011 | 122.45 108.20 1841586 125.05 108.50 3851861
January, 2012 126.00 108.30 2538204 124.80 108.35 4728824
February,2012 123.50 108.80 47723 123.70 108.80 10591511
March, 2012 134.85 118.00 2483829 144.00 118.35 5656266

Performance of RKL Scrip vis-a-vis BSE index
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The shares of the Company are traded in th
{ij Share Transfer Systermn:

With a view to exped
Mr. Amit Manchanda, Group Head - Leg
approve share transfer / d
ghare certificates docurmen
M/s. Mas Services Ltd. The Company
coosdination with the Registrars and Share Tran
wherein the Board ratifies the transfers/ dematerialisation

ematerialigation of
ts and other papers in relation th
Secretary being the
sfer Agents and presents
of shares as approved by the Company

ite process of share transfer, the Board of
al & Company Secretary,
the shares of the company
ereto in conjunc
Compliance Officer, moni
the report to

are processed at an interval of every 15 days.
(i} Distribution of Shareholding of the Company as on $1st March, 2012:

Directors has delegated the
who has been authorised by
and to sign endorsement on
ion with Registrar and Share Transfer Agent,
ilors the share transfer process in

o B1 category at BSE and are also actively traded on NSE.

power of share transfer to
the Board to supervise and
the reverse of the

the Board in each of its meetings,
Secratary. The transfers

UPTO 2500 21336 91.93 20909666 3966872 60B6738 4.59
2501 5000 1138 490 589195 1408284 2087470 1.57
5001 10000 404 1.74 311780 1120356 1432106 1.08
10001 20000 142 0.61 94925 892659 987584 - 075
20001 30000 32 0.14 10850 392487 403337 0.30
30001 40000 18 0.08 15500 302623 318123 0.24
40001 50000 ) 0.04 0 190847 190847 0.15
£0001 100000 28 013 31620 1045480 1077100 0.81
100001 ABOVE 100 0.43 0 120111565 120111565 80.51

TOTAL 23208 100.00 3153706 129550173 132702879 100.00

(k} Sharehoiding Patiern as of 31st March, 2012:

1, Promaters 53543232 ,
2 Mutual Funds & UT! 12483626 a.41
3 Insurance Companies, Banks, State Financial Corporation 1613050 1.21
4 Flis 33680037 25.38
5 Private Corporate Bodies 20413748 15.38
6 Indian Pubtic 9854517 7.43
7 NRIs/OCBs 1087834 0.82
B Others 26935 0.02
Total 132703879 100.00
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(i} Dematerialigation of Shares:
The Company's shares are tradable only in demat / electronic form in the depasitory system of National Securities
Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (COSL).
As on 31# March, 2012, 128550173 equity shares of the Company. amounting to 97.62% of the equity capital already
gxisted in the electronic form.
Those shareholders who have stili not gat their shares demalerialised are advised to do 50, as S00N 85 possible, in
view of many advantages that exist therein and mandatory trading in shares of the Company in Demat form only.

{m) Employee Stock Options {ESOPs):

A total of 6,566,324 options aré outstanding as on 31% March 2012 under the Employees Stock Option
Scheme 2006. Each option, upon exercise of the same, would give rise to one equity share of Rs.2/-
each, fully paid up. The exercise would be made at the market price pravailing as on the dates of the
grant plus applicable taxes as may be levied on the Company in this regard. The disclosures in respect
of ESOPs as required under Clause 12.1 of the SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, as amended, have been made in the Directors’ Report.

{n) Compliance:

The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements as stipulated under Clause 49 of the listing
agreements. The Company has submitted the quarierly gompliance status report on corporate governance
1o the stock exchanges within the prescribed time limit.

M/s. G.D. Agrawal & Co., Practising Company Secretaries, have certified that the Company has.complied
with the mandatory requirements as stipulated under Clause 49 Vil of the listing agreements. The said
cartificate is annexed to the Directors’ Report and wilt be submitted ta the stock exchanges and the MCA
along with the Annual Report.

(o) Certification ot Financial Reporting and Internat Controls:

In accordance with Clause 49 V of the fisting agreements, a certificate confirming the correctness of the
financial statements, adequacy of internal control measures and matters to be reported to the Audit
Committee was taken on record at the Board Meeting convenad for approval of the audited financial
results of the Company for the year under review.

(p) Going Concern:

The Board is satisfied that the Company has adequate resources to continue its business for the foreseeable
future and consequently considers it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board
' Sd~
Place : New Delhi Dv, Lalit Khaitan
Date : 31.07.2012 ' Chalrman & Managing Director

Annual declaration by Managing Director

As the Managing Director of Radico Khaitan Limited and as required by Clause 49 (1) (D) (ii) of the Listing Agreemant,
| hereby declare that all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed
compliance with the Company's Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, for FY 2011-12.

Piace : New Delhl Abhishek Khaltan
Date : 31.07.2012 Managing Diractor



AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
TO THE SHAREHDLDERS OF RADICO KHAITAN LIMITED

_ We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Radico
Khaitan Limited for the year ended March 31st, 2012, as stipulated in clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement of the said company with Stock Exchanges of India.

. The Compliance of condition of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
management. Our examination was limited to the review of procedures and
implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the
conditions of Corporate Governance. [t is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion
on the financial statements of the Company.

. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we certify that the company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

 We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability
of the company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For V. Sankar Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 109208W

Sd/-
Place : New Delhi M.S. Balachandran
Date : 04.08.2012 Partner

Membership No. 024282



AUDITORS'
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF RADICO KHAITAN LIMITED

1.

REPORT

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of RADICO
KHAITAN LIMITED as at 31st March, 2012 and also the
Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement of
the Company for the year ended on that date, annexed
thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial staterments based
on our audit.

Wa conducted the audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally acceptedin India. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audlt to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatemert. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant astimates made by the
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement prasentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We report that

(a) We have obtained all the information and
explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company, so far as
appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) TheBalance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and
Cash Flow Staterment dealt with by this raport are in
agresment with the books of Account;

(d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit
and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this report comply with the accounting standards
referred to in section 211 (3C) of the Companies Act,
1956 to the extent applicable;

{e) Onthe basis of written representations received from
the directors and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, we report that none of the directors are
prima facie, disqualified as on 31 .03.2012 from being
appointed as directors of the Company in terms of
section 274{1)(g) of the Companies Act, 1956.

() In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the said
accounts and read with the significant accounting
policies and notes thergon, give the information
required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally acceptad
in India :

i in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2012,

i in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss,
of the proftt for the year ended on that date; and

ii in the case of cash flow statement, of the cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

4. As required by the Companies (Auditors Report} Order,

2003 (as amended) lssued by the Department of
Company Affairs, Govi. of India in terms of Section 227
{4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, and on the basis of
such checks as we considered appropriate and
according to the information and explanations given 0
us, we further report on the matters specified in the
paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order as undet :

i a) Tha Company is maintaining proper records
ghowing full particulars, including quantitative
detalls and situation of fixed assets.

b) The management has physically verified major
part of tha fixed assets atthe distillery at Rampur
and other locations once during the year. The
assets physically verified are under reconciliation
with the book records and discrepancies, if any,
can be ascertained only after the reconciliation
is complets.

¢) Since there is no substantial disposal of fixed
assets during the year, the preparation of
financial statements on a going concern basis
is not affected on this account.

i a) On the basis of information and explanations
obtained, stocks of finighed goods and raw
materials of the distillery / bottling units have
been under physical check by the excise
department in coordination with the Company's
supervisory staff at fraquent intervals. Other
gocks, stoves and spares, at various locations
have been physically verified by the
management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable.

b) In our opinion, the procedures of physical
verification of inventory followed by the
" management are reasonable and adequale in
relation to the size of the Company and the nature

of its business.

¢) 1n our opinion, the Company is maintaining
proper records of inventory and no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification.

i a) The Company has granted Rs.1963.03 lacs as
interast free unsecured working capital advance
undar a specific manetacturing and selling
arrangement and Rs.1000 lacs as interest
bearing unsecured advance to a joint venture
company, The maximum amounts outstanding



during the year aggregated to R3.3028.86 lacs
and year end outstanding balance aggregated
10 Rs.3028.86 lacs respectively.

b) Keeping in view similar arrangement with othar
parties, the working capital arrangement
financed by the Company is free of interast undar
a specific manufacturing and selling
arrangernent. In relation to both advances, there
are no other terms and conditions that are
prajudicial to the interest of the Company.

c) There is no stipulation regarding repayment of
principat as the amount has been financed under
a specific manufacturing and seiling
arrangement with the party. As mentioned
above, the loan has been financed interest free.
In the case of interest bearing advance also,
thera are no stipulations regarding repayment
of principal and interest of Rs.56.38 lacs has
accrued but not due as at the year end.

d} As mentioned above, there are no stipulations
ragarding repayment of principal, Accordingly,
thera is no overdue amount of more than rupees
one lac in respect of amount financed to the
Company listed in the register maintained under
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

8) The Company has not taken any loans, secured
or unsecured from companies, firms or other
parties required to be covered in the register
maintained under section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956 except interest free working capital
advance taken from a joint venture company
(ceased to be a joint venture w.e.f.: 3rd February,
2012) under a specific manufacturing and selling
arrangement. The maximum amount
autstanding during the year was Rs.384.08 lacs
and year-end outstanding balance was
Rs.360.42 lacs.

f) 1n our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, ather terms and
conditions for such advances are not prima facie
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

g} In respect of the advances taken, there is no
repayment schedule and is interost free. Thus
question of principal amount due for repayment
and payment of interest do not arise.

In our opinion and according to the information and
axplanations given to us, there are adequate internal
control system commensurate with the size of the
Company and the nature of its business, for the
purchase of inventory and fixed assets and with
regard to the sale of goods. During the course of our
audit, we have naither come across nor have been
informed of any continuing failure to correct major
weaknesses in the internal controt system,

vii

viil

a) According to the information given 1o us, the
particulars of confracta or arrangements during
the year that need to be entered into a register
in pursuance of section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1056 have been so entered.

b} Inour opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the transactions
made in pursuanca of such contracts or
arrangements, exceeding the value of rupees
five lacs, are of specific requirements of the
Company for which alternative sources are not
available for comparigon of prevailing market
prices.

Thé Company has not accepted deposits from the
public within the meaning of sections 584 and SBAA
or any other relevant provisions of the Companias
Act, 1856 and the Rules framed thereunder. '

An outside agency has carried out internal audit
during the year. In our opinion, the internal audit
systen of the Company is commensurato with the
size of the Comparny and the nature of its business,

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts
maintained by the Company, pursuant to rules made
by the Ceniral Governiment for the maintenance of
cost records under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of
section 209 of the Companies Act, 1856 and are of
the opinion that prima facie, the pregcribed accounts
and records have been mainained and the required
staterments are in the process of compilation. We
have not, however, made a detailed examination of
the records with a view to determine whethar they
are accurate or complete.

a) According to the records of the Comipany, the
Company has been generally reguiar in depositing
undisputed statutory duss including Provident Fund,
investor Education and Protection Fund, Empioyees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Wealth Tax,
Sarvice Tax, Cusiom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and
any other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and
explanations given to us, there were no arrears of
undisputed statutory dues as at 31st March, 2012,
which were outstanding for a period of more than six
months from the daie they became payabie.

b} According to the records of the Company and
the information and explanation givento us, there
are no dues of income-ax, wealth tax, custom
duty and cess, which have not been deposited
on account of any dispute. Details of disputed
dues in respect of sales tax, excise duty and
service tax of different years, which have
remained unpaid as on 31st March, 2012, for
which appeals are pending are as under:



Hature ol Yoar Amourt Forum whare
dues {Re. In lacs} panding
Sates Tax / Entry Tax 190880 a0e Favision badore
& 199900 Allshabiad High Court
1999-00 6,86 Trade Te Tribuns,
Moracabad
Excies Duly 1881 17.37 Allababad High Court -
Lugknow Barch
1995 to 2005 92,38 Allahetad High Court -
Lucknow Banch [Bank
Guarantsa lesuad)
200505 o 200800 5603 Adghabas High Court -
Lucknow Banch
Sanvice Tax July 2003 1o 25847 CESTAT, Daii¥
March 2008
(inctuding interasl
ang Penaly)
x The Company has no accumulated losses as at the

Xi

il

xiil

Xiv

ond of the year and has not incurred cash losses
during the financiai year covered by our audit or in
the immediately preceding financial yesr.

On the basis of the verification of records and
information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of duas to
financial institutions or banks. There are no
debentures {other than unsecured FCCBs which
wera repaid during the year} outstanding inthe books
of accounts at any time during the year.

The Company has not granted foans and advances
on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares,
debentures and other securities.

The Company is nota chit fund / nidhi / mutual benefit
fund / society. Therefcre, the provisions of clause
4(xili) of tha Companies (Auditors Report) Order ere
not applicable to the Compary.

As regards dealing or trading in shares, securities,
debentures and other investments, proper records
have been maintained of the transaction of the
contracts and timely entries made therein. The
shares, securities, debentures and other investments
have been held by the Company in its own name
axcept to the extent of exemption, if any, granted
undsr Section 49 of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has given a guarantee of Rs.5640 lacs
for loans taken by Radico NV Distilleries Maharashira,
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Place: New Dalhi
Date : 30.05.2012

(a joint venture company, in which the Company
holds 36% of the paid-up Capital) from a bank. On
the basis of information end explanations given to
us, the terms and conditions whereof are not, prima
facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

xvi On the basis of verification and information and
explanations obtained, on an overall basis, the term
loans teken have bean appliad for the purpose for
which they were obtained.

xvii According to the information and explanations given
1o us, the cash flow staternents examined by us and
on an overall examination of the financial staterants
of the Company, we report that funds raised on short
term basls have been not been used for long term
investmants.

xviti During the year, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment of shares to parties and
companies covered in the Register maintained under
section 301 of the Act.

As the Company has no outstanding debentures
during the year (other than unsacured FCCBs, which
were repaid during the year), the question of creating
securities or charge does not arlse.

Xix

xx The Company has not raised any money through
public issue of securities during the year and
therefore verification of the end use of money does
not arise.

i Based on the audit procadure performed and the
representation obtained from the management, we
report that no caee of fraud on or by the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year under
audit. '

For V. Sankar Alyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No. 109208W

Sd-
(M.S. Balachandran)
Partner

M.No. 0242682



EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2012

Shareholders’ fands
Share capital 2 2,634.08 1455116
Reserves and surplus 3 66,871.86 62,48%.36
§9,525.94 65,140.52
Share application money pending allotmens: 2 1.61 -
Noncurrent liabilicies
Long-term homowlings 4 33,83548 4.401.94
Deferred tax labilities (Net) 5 5,633.00 457500
Other long term Habilites - Security deposits 182.68 155.54
Long-term provisions [ 402,10 13330
40,053.26 9,765.78
C Bipbiliss
Short-term borrowings 7 22,770.%9 26,486,712
Trade payables 8 11872.69 8,354.51
Other current liabilities 9 15,161.37 21,259.33
Shost-term provisions 10 1,518.33 5491.88
56,333.18 61,836.44
Total 165,913.99 136,742.74
ASSETS
Non-current asscts
Fixed assets
- Tangible assets 1 45,803.30 37,258.08
- Intangible assets 11 4,418.38 4,631.87
- Capital work-in-progress {at cost) 484,38 2,185.92
Non-current investments 12 5,838.09 6,784.58
Forelgn currency monetary item transtation difference account 2,684.65 -
Long-rerm loans and advances 13 8,540.12 1.079.98
Other non-current assets - deposits with banks 17 7.9 50.45
67,840.71 57,990.88
Current assets
Current investments 14 5,295.66 5,287.39
Inventories 15 17,744.56 12,687.29
Trade receivables 15 34,779.21 31,909.50
Cash and bank balances 17 2,103.85 889.43
Short-term loans and advances 18 34,726.81 25,887.22
Other current assets 19 342319 2,091.03
98,073.28 78,751.86
Towl 1659399 T136,142.74
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Other Notes on: Accounts Ilw4s
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board
For V, Sankar Aivar & Co.
Chartered Accountants Dilip K. Banthin Dr. Lalit Khaitan
ICAl Firm Regn. No. 109208 W Chief Financial Officer Chairman & Managing Dévector
M. 8. Balachandran Amit Manchanda Abhishek Khaltan
Partner Group Head - Legal & Menaging Director
Membership No. 024282 Compeany Secretary
Place : New Delhi Ajay K. Agarwal D¥rectors
Dated : 30th May 2012 Executive Vice President (F&A)
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for the year ended 31st March, 2012

INCOME

Revenue from operations 20 196,138.54 169.227.87

Less : Excise ducy 83,751.87 74,585.58
114,386.67 94,642.29

Other income 21 2,137.1% 1,112,090
116,523.82 95,754.38

EXPENSES

Cost of materlals consumed n 46,867.08 40,299.79

Purchase of stock-in-trade 23 944127 4,016.27

Change in inventories of finished goods,

work-In-progress and stock-in-trade 7 (1,695.96) X (1.226.96)

Employee benefits expense 2 | 7.063.55 6.19887

Finance costs 26 6,112.09 3,525.81

Depreciation and amortization expense 27 3,283.54 2,714.64

Other expenaes 8 35,505.96 30,280.90
106,577.93 §5,809.32

Profit for the year before exceptional iterns 8 tax 994589 9,945.06

Less : Exceptional Items » 1,249 -

Profit for the year before taxation 8,696.00 9.945.06

Less: Tax expense

- Current tax (MAT) 1,760.00 2,100.00

- For earlier years 42.00 100.00

- Defetred tax Liability / {assets) G5R.00 465.00

MAT Credit available for set off {130.00) -

Profit for the year after tax T 6,366.00 7,280.06

Basic Earnings per share in Rs. (f2ce value of Rs. 2I- each) 0 4,80 5.51

Diluted Earnings per share in Rs. (face value of Re, 2/- cach) 4.76 5.51

Significant Accounting Policies 1

Other Notes on Accounts 3048

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board

For V. Sankar Aiyar & Co.

Chartered Accountents Dilip K. Banthia Dr. Lalit Khaitan

1CAl Firm Regn. No. 109208 W Chicf Financial Officer Chairman & Managing Director

M. 8. Balachandran ' Amit Manchanda Abhishiek Khaitan

Partrer Group Head - Legd & Managing Director

Membership No. 024282 Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi Ajay K. Agarwal Dirvectors

Dated : 30th May 2012 Exscutive Vice President (F&A)
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A, Cash Flow From Operating Activiries

Ner Profit Before Provision For Tax 8,696.00 9,945.06
Add:
Deprectation and amortization expense 3,183.94 1,7114.64
Interest on Borrowings 5,112.09 352581
Employees Compensation (Escp) (17.0% 4319
Loss-on Sale of Asew 93.03 452.680
Liws o0 Spbke of Shares 1,249.99 -
Provislon for Diminution in value of Investment 1L.73 14.66
Provision For Non Moving Stock 113,62 5612
Provision for Dourful debors and advances 47,90 54.08
19,591.17 16,806.46
Less:
Interest income (2,064.965) {597.45}
Dividend on investnents {0.57 (A %3]
Profit on Sale of Assers {5.58) {13782}
Profit on Sale of investment - (195.62)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 12,520.06 15,175.42
Adjustment For Working Capiral Changes:
{Increase) /D in o {5,170.89) (442.23)
{ncrease)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (2,895.16) (BA09.5D)
{Ine /TN in Other Receivabl {1,332.15) (D474}
{[ncrease)/Deczease in Loarw and Advances {4,392.20) (2,760.83)
{Decrease)/increase in Trade and Other Payables 12,270.96 193465
16,000.62 5492.70
Less: Taxes paid {1, 766,42} {1.416.82}
Net Cash From Operating Activitics 14,234.20 4,075.88
B. Cash Flow From investing Activities
Addition to Fixed Assets (including Work in Progress) {8,787.32) {6,571.23)
Gate of Fioed Assers S0.67 87292
Purchase of investments (413.74) {5,390.00)
Sale of mvestmenc 90.34 243352
\ncrense)/ Decrease in Loans Given {5,800.00) 1,000.00
Interest income 2,064.96 59745
Dividend income 0.57 015
Net Cavh Generated {(Used) in investing Activities {12,TB4.52) (7.055.09)
C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities — -
\ncrease / (Decrease) in Share Caples) {including Shere Premium} 91.69 600.00
Procesds fram Loag Term Borrowings 29,808.49 (213.21)
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (20,241.54) (3.3LT.49)
Short Term Borrowings (net) 1,284.06 796757
Investment in Non current Fixed Deposits with benks {21.3%) 0.00)
Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Adjustment as per Para 46464
{Refer note no. 34} (3,965.95) (1.7
Interest on Borrowings 16,112.09) (3.525.8Y)
THvidend on Equiry Shares(including Tax) {1,078.57) (92471}
Net Cash Generated! (Used) in Financing Activities (235260 594.63
Net increase! (Decrease} in Cash and Cash Equivalents 121442 {2.384.58)
Balance at the beginning of the year 889.43 327401
Balance at the end of the year: 2,103.85 68043
121442 {1,304.38)
Notes; The above Cash Flow 3 tias been prep memﬁummmmwmm@msw—ammmm
As per our ceport of even date For and on behalf of Board
For V. Sankar Aivar & Co.
Chanered Accountants Dilip K. Banthia Dr. Lalit Khaitan
ICAIL Birm Regn. No, 109208 W Chief Financial Officer Chairman & Managing Director
M. S. Balachandran Amit Manchanda Abhishek Khaitan
Parmer Group Hend - Legal & Mmaging Dérector
Membership No. 024282 Compery Secvetary
Place : New Delhi Ajay K. Agarwal Directors
Dated : 30th May 2012 Executive Vice President (F&A)
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts 2011-2012

1.01

1.02

1.03

1.04

1.0

106

1.07

1.08

1.09

1.10

L1t

Basis of preparation of financial stateraents

The financial statements are pnpamdmderhhmﬂmlmﬂwmmdummapﬁummh&hhmeﬁd:dnwﬂm& accaunting
standards prescribed in the Compandea {Accounting Standards) MmZMmdwdl&nwdwmmuﬂmvﬂdithele
Advisory CommitweonAccoundnsSmdardsmdnlwantpwﬁdmoftthompmﬂuAcn 1956.

Use of estimates

Thepmpamﬁmofﬁnamtalsmtemwrequires mpmmwmakemwinuﬁmuumdwumptmdmu{fectdu amounts reported in the
financial statements and notes thereto. Differences between actual results ur-duﬂmmmwhdmmpeﬂodmwﬂchmumﬂdbe.

Fixed assets, Intangible assets and capital work-in-progress

Fixed Assets are stated at cost except 1o the extent revalued. Borrowing costs ateributable to the qualifying assets and all significant costs
incidznmlmtheacquhiﬁanofaswmmmpimlbeiﬁeelmldmﬂmdddhrdatnmpm.mdh.mmoludbymappwvedvnlueru
on lst Janvary, 1999.Capitnlmmmmwtdmatdm.mmewmmmmmhhnﬁw
Intangible Assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortizaon and {mpairment boss, if sny.

Depreciation
“Tangihle assets
a) Cmtoflzmhcﬂlandatﬂleauhddmwvewmmammwdmﬂwpﬂbddhm.

b Depmciatiunischargedﬂoertheyearonsmid\tlimmethodatthetateurdlnd\emmupedﬂedmsdndubmdtheCompanies
Act,1956.

<) Onadditlonscosﬁng!esnhanRs.SOOO,depredationkpmﬂdadat 100% in the year of addizion.
)] Depmdnﬂonmamuumaddedonmsluaﬂmo(mhmn&mdﬁmwuﬂmkmm.

Inrangible assets

¢ Basedon the anticipated future economic benefits, the life of Brands & Trade Mark and Goodwill arc amortised over twenty to (wenty one
years on straight line method.

f So&wamateamonisedoverapelodoisixyeanmsmj@tlinemthod.
Investments

Long term investments are carried at cost. Provision for diminution in value oflong term investment is considered , if tn the opinion of management,
such 2 decline in value is considered as other than remporary in nature, Current investments are valued at lower of cost or fair value

Inventories

Finished goods and swock-in-process are valued at lower of cost ot net reslisable value, Cont inchudes cost of conversion snd other expenses
incutred in bringing the goods to their location and condition. Rawmueﬂnls.packimmateﬂah.smaulspmumwhndatlowrdcmta
net realisable value. Cost is ascertained on “moving average” basis for all inventoties.

Revenue recognition

Sa]esarerecognisedundelwewotonpassaacdﬁdedthm&m&zcummm&uﬂkmmmwmcmmm
areaccoum:ednetofsalestamNAT,mdedismunuandrebambutmcluﬂveofmheduw. Emhemmemhsﬁyhmmtedfurhuedmﬁe
policy of the State Government of Urtar Pmduh.ExponImenﬁwmmunwd ﬁxmdnbaﬁsdmmlusﬂemddumdme year. Interest
mmmbamdmﬁmmwmmvﬂcndmkmmwdﬂmmmddmtmmoeiveisumblﬁled-

Excize Duty

In respect of socks covered by central excise, exciee duwispwvidednndmimmchandabommldem&ﬂorwluam In respect of other
stocks, keepinginﬁewthatSmemduwpayaHemﬂtﬂs}wdpmducmhmtdemmhmﬂe (as it varies depending on the places m which they
are despatched), the excise dury on such atocks lying in faceory is accounted ﬁ)rmckamnmdsmhgood&ﬂmm&nddmunﬁnsﬁibwed
bvtheCompanyhasmimpactonthemuluof&eyw.

Transfer pricing of Bio-Gas | Power

Sinceitisnotpossibletocomputetheacmalc.mt,intetunitumsfuofbiu-gas&powwhavebemvaiuedmdwmbofnﬁmindimtﬁmlmst
} prevailing purchase price of power. The same has been considered for valuation of inventories.

Treatment of Employee benefits

The Company makes regular contributlons to duly constituted funda set u for Provident Fund, Family Pension Fund, Employecs Simte Insurance,
Superannuation and Gratuity, which are charged to revenue. The employees are allwed the benefix of leave encashmeny as per the rules of the
Company, forwhlchpmvisionforaccruingliahillwismadeonacmaﬁalvaluaﬂoncsﬂledoutatdmendof&mmn Contribution to gratuiey is
also determined on actuarial basis.

Impairment :
At each Balance Sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its fixed assets 1 determine whether chere are any indicatlon that those
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1.12

1.13

1.14

1.15

assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indicatlon exists, tecoverable amount of the assets i estimated in order to determine the
extent of impairment koes.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for at the exchange rate prevalling on the day of the tansaction. The outztanding liabilities/
recelvables are trarslated at the year end rates. The resultant gain or loss are adjusted to the Profit & Loss Account. Non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currency, (such s fixed assets) are valued ar the exchange rate prevaifing on the date of mansacton. Any galn or losses
arising due to exchange differences arising on translation or settlement are accounted foe in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In case of forward
exchange contracts, the premium or discount arising at the inception of such contracts, &5 amortised as income or expense over the period of
contract and exchange difference on such contracts, i.e. difference between the exchange rate at the reporting / settdement dare and the exchange
rate on the date of inception / the last reporting date, s recognized as Income / expenses for the perfod.

Derivative Transactions

These transactions are undettaken to hedge the cost of bomowing and comprise of principal / interest rate swaps.The income / expenses are
recognised when eamed / incurred. In case of curstanding derivative contracts at the year end date, loss i determined on matked o markex
{(MTM) basis and provision made.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asseta

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation In measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of pest events
and it is probable thax there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent Habilitles are not recognized bu are disclosed tn the notes to accounts,
Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Research and Development

FmedassetsusedforReswchandDevehpmentandcpmdamdindmememmmrmm&ncmofdmﬂarm&nmm:mnm
charged off in the year of incurrance. .

Taxation

Provision is made for deferred tax for all timing differences atlsing beoween txable income and scconnting ineome at currentdy enacted or
substantially enacted tax raves. Deferred tax assets are recognized, only if there is reasonsble / virtual certainty thae they will be renlized and are
reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying values at esch Balance Sheet date.

Leases

Since significant portion of risks and rewards are retatned by lessor in respect of assers acquired on lease, they are classified as operating lease and
the lease rentals are charged off o revenue account.
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Notes on Accounts for the year ended 31.03.2012

2. Share Capital
Authotised

17.00,00,000 {Previous year 17,00,00,000) equity shares of Ra. 2/- each 3,400.00 3,400.00
60.00,000 (Previous year 60,00,000) preference shares of Rs. 100/~ each 6,000,00 6,000.00
—_9,400.00 — 940000

Tssued, Subseribed snd fully paid :
13,27.03.879 (PY 13,25,58,204) equity shares of Rs. 2/- each 2,654.08 ,651.16
s 166

a. The Company has Issued only one class nfshareu,teferredmasaquitvshmhaﬁngapuvalmdh. 2/- Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote pet share

b. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indlan rupees. “The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meedng ' i

c. During the year ended March 31, 2012, the amount of dividend per shate recognized for distribution o equity sharcholders is Rs. 0.80 (previous year
Rs. 0.70). The total dividend appropriation for the year ended March 31, 2012 amounted to Rs. 1,233.94 lacs (previous year Rs. 1,078.57 lags) including
corporate dividend o of Re. 17231 lacs (previous year Rs. 150,55 lacs} .

d. Reconciliation of the number of shares No. of Shares No. of Shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 132,558,204 131,830,525
Add: Issued during the year 145,675 721,619
Cutstanding at the end of the year 132,703,879 M

¢. Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares N oof Shares N, of Shares
Sapphire Intrex Lod. 25.54% 33,888,011 25.14% 33,324,010
Shailaja Finance Led. 8.44% 11,204,501 B.45% 11,204,501
HSBC Global Investment Funds Mauritius Led, 8.38% 11,124,125 8.30% 11,000,000
Reliance Capital Teustee Company Ltd. 6.04% 8,018,382 5.68% 7,527,382

F. Shares reserved for issue under options: ESOPs
The Company established Employee Stock Options Plan, duly approved by the sharcholders in the meecing held on 25.05.2006 which Is effecdve from
25.07.2006. Accordingly, the Company has granted 36,50,000 equity options upto 31.03.2012 which will gex vesced over a perlod of 4 years from the date
of the grant. The employees have theoptimumexerciset}wrightwidﬁnaperlodof3ymsﬁmd‘aednteofveedng.'ﬂ'lecumemationmstafsnock
options granted to employees are accounted by the Company using the intrinsic value method.

Summary of Stock Option No. of stock option  No. of stock option
Option granted upto the year end 3,650,000 3,650,000
Cptions forfeited upto the year end 1,425,013 1,116,390
Options exercised upto the year end 1,568,663 142,988
Option cutstanding at the year end 656,324 1,110,622
Exercise price (welghted average) Rs. 8L.20 Rs. 84.15

In tespecy of Options granted under the Employee Stock Options plan, in awofdanccwididnguidelmmdbySEBl.&nmnmsvnlueo{m
options is sccounted as deferred employee compensation, whichhmorﬁzzedmasmsghtHmh:hmﬂnpemdbemn&edamofgrmtofopm
and eligible dates for conversion into equity shares, Consequently, Employee benefits expense { Note no. 25} includes Rs.17.03 lacs credit {Previous year
Rs.43.19 lacs) being the amortisation of deferred employee compensation. . )
Share application money : The shares are expected to be allotted at an enrly date. The Company has sufficlent authorised capital to cover the sald
allotment.
Rupees in lacs

Ay at 31.03.2012 As at 31.03.2011

3. Reserves and Surplus

Balance as per last balance sheet 1,21%.68 1,213.68
Preference Shares Redemptinn Reserve
Batance 85 per last balance sheet 20,02 2002
Securirics Premium R
Balance as per last balance sheet 37,871.86 37.955.53
Add ; Receipts on exercise of employee stock options 87.17 585.44
Add : Transfer from employee stock option cutstanding account 19.66 215.39
Less ; Premium on foreign currency convertible bonds adjusted 81332 883.50
. 37,166.37 37,872.86
Balance as per last balance sheet 928.30 934.66
Less : Transfer being depreciation on revalued assers {Refer Note 27) 636 6.36
92194 928.%0




Emplavee Stock Options outstanding agcouns

Gross employee stock compensation for options granted in eartier years
Add : Gross compersation for optlons granted during the year

Less : Deferred employee stock compensation

Less : Tratsfer to securities premium reserve on exercise of stock options

General Ressrve
Balance as per last balance sheet
Add : Transfer from Surplus

Surplos

Balance a5 per last balance sheet

Add : Profit for the year as per Statement of Profit and Loss

Less: Interest on income-tax relating to eardier year arising out of TTSC Order

Less ; Appropriations
Transfer to general reserve
Dividend for previous year
Proposed dividend

Tax on proposed dividend

4, Longterm Borrowings
Bonds - Unsecured
- Foreign currency convertible bonds
Term Loans - Secured *
- Rupee loans from banks
- Foreign currency loans from banks

Less : Shown in current maturities of long-term debt {Refer Note
- Foreign currency convertible bonds .
- Rupee loan from banks

{). The above loans are secured by a pari-passu first charge on gross block of fised assets of the Company, both present and future.

145.12

7241
19.66

53.05

———

17,00000

440086
31,85125
nmsan

341663

i), Non-fund based facilities provided by banks are also secured by a second charge on the fixed assets of the Company

iiiy. Term of repayment and interest are as follows:-

Name Balance

instalmnents
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds Nit
State Bank of Hyderabad - Rupee Term Loan & Qerly
State Bank of Travancore - Rupee Term Loan 4 Qrrly
State Bank of India - Rupee Term Loan 8- Quily
[CICI Benk Ltd - ECB $ 200,00 lacs 21 - Quly
1CICY Bank Led - ECB $ 292.17 lacs 21 - Qurly.
State Bank of India - ECB $ 130.00 lacs B8-HY

iv} The Company reised USD 50 million through an issue of FOCBs on 26¢h July 2006 (USD 40 miilion) and 25th Auguat 2006 (USD 10 million on exercise
of green shoe option by the manager ta the issue). The FOCBs carried a coupon rate of 3.50% pes gnnum and had a maturity of five years and one day from
the date of issue. These were redeemed during the year on the maturity dates at 8 premium of 30.3961% of the principal amount.

5. Deferred Tax Lisbilities (Ne)
Deferred Tax Liabitities:
Related to fied assets
On account of tax holiday

Deferred Tax Assets:

FCCB/ ECB adjustment

Provision for gratuity arxd leave encashment
Provision for doubtful debes and others

Deferred Tax Liability (Net)

6. Longsterm Provisions
Provision for employee benefits.
- Leave encashment {See Nate 37)

Yearof
Maturity

July 2011
Feb 2014
Mar 2013
Maz 2014

Ageil 2018
July 2018
Tuly 2018

a
on 31.3.2012

37,25L.11

357.06

52.46
104.37
215.39

876

13,162.52
383708

17,000.00

333745

33513
10,282.28

3308
1.89

31.3.2011

15,140.81
2,985.31
3.333.30
1,125.00

2158442

5,338.00
—53B®
173.58
163.55

2587
497500
p——

23330
233.30



7. Shortterm Borrowings
Sec

ured
. Cash credit from banks (repayable on demand)

27,770.79
« ING Vysya Bank Limited (Buyers Credit } .

2079

25.904.62
582.10
36,486.72
N gshcrcditluamfrmnbanh-mmdbyhywmmﬂmdmvmwrbnﬂbmkdebmFmdmmumdhnwmdchmmhdmofdw
Liglel .
i} Buyena:redlt-muredbyachargemspedﬁcﬂmedm

. 8. Trade Peyables
Due to Micro and Small enterprises (See Note below) . -
Others # 11,872.69 8,398.51
N 11!221-59 &3&31
ote
The Company has not received information from suppliers or service providers, wh&mdwym_m:duﬂuMm.SmﬂmdMediumEnm
{ m)Au.2006mdhenceithasnotbu.-npouiﬂetomm&umummwnmhmmmuww.unwmd
together with interest paid or & 10 them,
# lncludes: Diageo Radico rics Private Limited - Rs. 360.42 lacs (Previcus Year- Rs. 384.08 lacs)
9. Other Current Liabilivies '
Current maturities of long-term debt
- Foreign currency convertible bonds . 15,140.81
- Rupee loan from banks 3,416.63 3,041.67
Tnterest accrued but not due on bormowings 264.08 123.43
Intetest accrued and due on borrowings 911 47.06
Advances from customers and othets 10,266.51 -1,840.20
Unctaimed dividends # 72.30 1.16
Other payables :
- Security deposits 145.35 151.23
- Accrued salary and benefits 22717 199.02
- Statutory dues ) 735.122 644.73
LN TIET _21259.33
# This does not include any amount due and cutstanding, to be credited to the Investor Education and Provection Fund
10, Short4erm Provisions
For e benefits.
- Gratuity (See Note 37) 54.57 30.20
- Leave encashment (See Note 37} 132.45 240.60
Premiuvm on redemption of FCCB - 4,287.39
Proposed dividend 1,061.63 928.02
Tax on proposed dividend 172,22 150.55
For raxation {net of payments) 68.80 33.22
For excise duty on closing stock 3130 14.54
Other contingencles 736 7.36
Total 1,518.33 5,691.88
11.Fixed Asscta
{Refer Note No, 1.04 and 1.05) {Rupees in tocs)
DESCRIFTION OF — CBQRSELOCK ——HELROCK
ASSETS ASAT ADDITIONS  DEDUCTIONS ASAT UPTO FORTHE WRITTEN UPTO AAT ASAT
1042011 ILOAI0N  LOAIOLL TEAR BACK  JLOMZI0I3 3033012 3LASION
Tangible Assew
Freehold land 159692 268.99 214591 - - - 218891 189692
Leaschold land 194634 - 194654 128617 a7 . 1S4 e5L60 65037
Building . 4,589.73 232998 - £919.71 §70.19 19537 - 106556 SAS4.15 371954
Plant & oquipment 39,772.67 855732 5438 4827541 1010550  Le047 409 1230008  ITEAS3 1946717
Office equipment k71 k1] 1.55 .61 380.26 20665 1804 027 1253 15494 11267
Fumirare & frtings 43320 189 . 43629 11305 845 . ULI 24 WIS
Vchicles 105087 167.86 28663 932,10 EYLRT) 95.50 14954 0.4 66296 T
Lzaschold improvemenc SBAEL 196.36 12,03 95 40003 T0.31 989 460.53 242 18857
50,662.87 11,560.15 35365 6186937 1340010 1BGHL 20553 1608607 4580330 3715508
Tnrangible Asscrs
Brands & trade marks 5.004.70 - 5,004,720 151266 4297 LSSy 3,1%.07 340104
Goodwit] 955.00 . 955.00 33425 .75 - w00 57300 605
Sofrwares 45618 210.00 866,18 7510 1.1 - 20087 65631 57908
6,615.88 21000 - 681388 1,984.0) 423499 - LATS0 441858 463087
Taal $7.210.75 11,120.15 351,65 saH9825  |5388.80 3,203 S5 LRATSST  SQ2ELEE 4185095
Previos year 55,051.12 4,418,719 219116 5?&7&?! 'I.Jl_.'ﬁ_ﬂ.i? 2_,_'.21.00 99971 1_!_9.‘-.1 41,59095 41,9155

Notes:

1. Adkdirions to Plant end Equipinent Is oet of

a RaZISAOlu:smﬁw&mﬂn&vmd@ﬁwmdmﬂwfnﬂmmﬁmlhwnﬁl1wmmmmhw
b} Rs. 1281.30 bace, sdjusrments towads foreign cxchangs losf (gain) {previous year: deduction Ra.| 13.49 Lacs) on ioag verm forsign curtency borowings-
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12, Non Current Investments
(At cost) (Unguoted)

i)

Trade Investments

Equity Shares of Joint Venmure Companies

Radico NV Dislleries Maharashera Limiced - 26,59,500 (previous year:
2,265,750) equity shares of Rs. 100 each, fully paid up, (See foot notes (a}

& (b} given below)

Disgec Radico Distillerles Private Limited - Nil (Previous year: 1,25,00,000)
Equity shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid up

Equity Shares of Associate Company

Radico Globel Limited - 90,650 (Previous year: 90,650) equity shares of
AEDI00 each, fully paid up - incotporated in Jebel Al Free Zone, Dubal (See
foot note (a) given below)

Viniage Bortlers Private Limited - Nl (Previcus year: 1,000) equity shares of
Ra.10 each, fully paid up

Preference Shares of Joint Venture Company

Radico NV Distilleries ‘Maharashtra Limived - 20,00,000 (Previous year:
20,00,000) 10% cumulative, non-convertible preference shares of Rs. 100
each, fully paid up

Non-trade Investments

New Urban Cooperative Bank Ltd. - 2,388 (Previous yesr: 2,388) equity shaves

of Rs. 25 each, fully paid up
Government or trust securities (Linquoted)

& year National Savings Certificates (Deposited with Govemment Depantments as

security}

Foot Notes

2,805.74 2,412.00

- 1,250.00

103045 103045

. 90.00

2,000.00 2,000.00
5836.19 6,782.45
.60 0.60

1.30 1,53

1.90 213

7 7Y Y

a} No provision has been made for diminution in the value of investments in Radico Global Lid. and Radico NV Distilleries Maharashera Lod,, as
in the apinion of the management, the investments have been made on u long term basis and are of arategic nature and the diminution s

considered temporary in nature .

b 11,55.575 Shares of Radico NV Distilleries Maharashtra Ltd.have been pledged with bank as security for loans granted o them.

13.Long-term loans and advances
{Unsecured- Considered pood unless otherwise stated )
Capital Advances
Security Deposits
Prepeid expenses
MAT credit available for ser off {refer nore - 36(1))
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Loans and advances to & related party:

- Share application money to Radico NV Distilleries Maharashtra Limited (a Joint Venture Co.)

14. Current Investments
{At lower of cost or fair value}
Non Trade - Unquoted

B

i}

Equity Shares

Ravalaseema Paper Mills Led - 16,901 (Previpus year: 16,901) equity shares
of Rs.10 each, fully paid up,

Units of Mumual Funds

Relignce Small Cap Fund (Growth Plan) « 30,00,000 (Previous year:
30,00,000) uniw of Rs.10 each, fully paid up (NAY Rs, 273.61 lacs)

SBI Dynamic Bond Fund { Growth Plan) - 1,55,487 (Previous year: nil) units of

Rs.10 each, fully paid up (NAV Rs. 20.51 lacs)
Certificate of deposit with a financial institution {SICOM Led)

Less:- Diminution in value of current investments

5432.66 497195
1,068.06 506,37
395,12 2.57
1,577.50 144750
66,78 1.59

. 150.00
6540.13 7,079.98
208 2.05
300.00 30000
20,00 .
5,000.00 5,000.00
5,312.08 5.302.05
2639 14.66
__5,20566 28139



15. Inventories

{Refer Note 1.06 on valuation)
Raw materials

Stock in process

Finished goods

Stock-in-trade

Stores & spares

Packing materials

Less : Provision for obsolete and non moving inventory

16. Trade Receivables

{(Unsecured- Considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Crustanding for a petiod exceeding six months from the due date
- Unsecnred, considered good

- Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful debts
Others

17.Cash and Bank Balances

Balances with banks

- in current acoounts

- in term deposits #

- in unpaid dividend accounts

Cash on hand

Deposit with Post Office

Less: Deposits with more than 12 months maturiey shown under
other non-current assets

# Deposit includes
Under lien with Governmant department and banks as security.

18. Short-texm Loans and Advances

(Unsecured- Considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Loans and advances to related parties

- Radico NV Distilleries Mahashera Limited (Joint Venture}
- Radico Global Limited (Associate)

Share application money to Vintage Botders Private Limited
Advances recovetable in cash ot kind:

- Considered good #

- Considered doubtfu)

Less: Provision for doubful advance

Tnter corporate deposits

Advances to Contracx Botding Units #

Other Logns and Advances

- Sales tax paid under protest

- Claims and Duties Recoverable from Excise Depattment

- Other balances recoverable from Statutory/ Government authorites
- Security Deposits

- Prepaid expenses

# includes due from Radico NV Distilleries Maharashtra, a Joint Venture

19.Other current assets

{(Unsecured - Consideted good)
Interest accrued on

- term deposits

- loans and advances

Accrued excise subsidy
Accrued export incentives

Total

57

587402
143717
7.285.26
17895
1,268.20
1,767.31
1291791
17338

Ti77ea36

6,818.85
582.73
740158
(582.73)
27,960.36

_24:779:21

18,954.51
18.11
93.53

233.35
1,198.58

1,963.03

1,775.73
1,31341

75

2,638.22
1,355.10
5,882.45

1787
101192
1,781.45

U572
386729

4,539.62
598.27
5789
(557.29)
27,3289

31,909.50




20, Revenue from Operations
(Refer Note 1.07 on revenue recognition)
Sale of
- Alcohol and other alecholic products
- Pet bortles & caps
- Jalvik khad
- Printed bottles
- Others (Blends & Others)
Sale of traded goods
- Indlan Made Foreign Liquor
- Aleohol
- Imported Liguor
Income from Operations through Other Distilleries / Bottling Units
Orther operating revenues
- Export {ncentives
- Cenvat credit utilised
- Excise revenue subsidy income
- Scrap sales

21.Other Income
Interest income on
- Term deposit with banks and financial institutions
- Loats and advances (including inter corporate depasits)
- Interest on income tax refunds
Dividend income ot current investments
Profit on sale of current investments
Profit on sale of fixed assets
Excess provisions written back
Miscellaneous income

22, Cont of Materials Consumed
Raw Matetials
Opening Stock
Add: Purchases

Less: Closing Stock
Raw material consumed
Packing materlals consumed

23, Purchase of Traded Goods
Indian made foreign tquor
Aleohal
Imported Liquor

24, Changer in Inventories of Traded goods,Finished Goods and Stock-in-procest
Opening Stock
Traded goods
Finished goods
Srack in process

Less : Closing Stock
Traded goods
Finished goods

Stock in process

58

794.76
1,270.20

0.57

5.58
687
19.17

2,137.15

2,638,272
31,791,685

344129.87
5,874.02

18,555.85
18,311.23

309629

944127

77.87
588245
1,355.10

17895
7,295.26
1437.17

901138
(1,695.96)

140,914.36
5,631.33
41.31
1,747.89
1,653.80

3,278.21
836.05
396.66

11,34.13

LM5.04
41199
752.27
914.83

169,227.87

62.68
53477
36.26
0.15
195.62
23782
794
3685

1,112.09

—— e

4,059.20
24.013.09

1807229

2,638.22
1543407
14,865.12

40,29.19

3,209.78
688.04
118.45

4,016.27

120.63
5,080.77
837.06

6,088.46
71.87

588245
1,355.10

131542
1,216.



25, Employee Benefits Expense
(Refer Note 1.10 on employee benefits)
Salaries, wages and allowances

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity

Employee stock options scheme - {See Note 2)
Staff welfare expenses

26, Finance Costs

Interest expense
Other horrowing costs
Applicable net gainfloss on foreign currency transactions and translation

27. Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of tangible assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

Less: Transfer from revaluation reserve

28. Other expenises

Powet and fuel
Stores and spazes consumed
Repairs and maintenance
- Building
- Mlant and equipment
- QOthers
Machinery and other hire charges
Insurance
Rent
Rates and taxes
Travelling Expenses - Directors
- Others
Directors’ fee
Foreign exchange fuctations (net)
Pravision for obsolete and non moving inventory
Ohsolete and non moving inventory written off
Charity and donation
Provision for doubtful debus / advances
Bad debts / advances written off
Less : Adjusted against provision
Bic composting expenses
Professional Fee & retainership expenses
C icatlon exp
Sundry balances written off
Provision for diminution in value of investment
Loss on sale / write off of assets
Bank charges
Orher overheads
Selting and distribution expenses:
- Freight outwards
- Supervision charges - after sales
- Supetvision charges to supervisors
- Rebate discount and allowance
- Advertisement & sales promation

6,29141
42602
89,77
{1703}
27338

7

571173
10350

1,83147

104.03
1,023.52
167.68
153.60
0127

2,102.23
79.50

3.85
3948
113.63

73.07
43.44
(25.18)
453.75
574.05

194.61.

47.13
1L.73

94.57
1,683.51

4,859.18
716.04
1,071.88
3,152.90
10,699.10

5,466.19
IT4.16
63.70
43.19
25163

§,198.87

335388
171.93

3,523.81

2,368.04
352,
3,721.00

636

2,714.64

344605
1.828.03

65.55
LM
130.711
109.19
238.11
273.33
1,430.34
7843
802.59
330
{179.20)

53.05

20.14
151.39
97.31
97.31)
567.62
473.98
18907
48.47
14.66
452.60
65.65
1,654.20

3,122.84
559.13
914.68

2,378.60

10,214.85

3528038
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29, Exceptional Items

Loss on sale of non current investment (Trade)
{of Diageo Radico Distilleries Private Limited - & Joint Venture)

30, Earning per Share

Profit after tax antributable to equity share holders (after deducting prior period and exira
otdinarvinem.preﬁeremdhddendandtaxﬂ\cmon)-ﬁxnuk:ﬂs

Profit after tax attributable to equity share holders {fter deducting prior petiod and extra
ordimrvim,prefemncedividendandmxdzmn)—&xDﬂudePS

Baskc weighted aversge no. of equity shares of Ra. 2/- each
Diluwdnlghtedamaaemafequitysharﬁufﬁ&ﬂ-&d’l

Baslc eaming per share (Rs)

Diluted earning per share (Ra)
Sln:.edmmwnﬁnlequltyanaomunwaSOPandFCCBmmddllumtn
ﬁ:mmnmr.d\edﬂuudeamimmhhmuﬂukma)

Other Notes an Accounts

31.Estimated amount of Capital commitments { Net of advances }
32.Contingent Liabilities not provided for:

i} Chimapinuﬂ\e(hmm,mwu delus
{a) Disputed hability relating to ESI Contribution
(t) Disputed lability relating to PF contribution of contactor labour
{c) Disputed liability relating to payment of lare re-calibration fees on
verlfication and stamping of manufaturing vats/tanks installed at distillery.
{d) Disputed clatm relating to refund of export duty ot rectified spirit
{e) Disputed Entry Tax demand-matter under appeal :
(0 Disputed penaley Ufs 10 for purchase of HSD (Diesel} matter under
{g) Disputed Excise mawers
{h) Disputed Stamp duty clzim arising out of amalgamation, being contesved
4] Disputeddemandsonamountdsewiunxincludm ineerest and penslty thereon
for the period July 2003 10 March 2010, being contested and under appesl

lnmspectufdwitmabove.ﬁ:mcuhwtﬂommdewmimbkmlyon
receipt of judgements / decisions pending et various forums / suthorities.

ii) Guarantee/ security given to Banks on behalf of Radico NV Disilleries Msharashtra Led:
a) Corporate Guaranitee
by Against pledge of Company’s Fixed Deposit for demand loan
¢} As co-obligant for vehicle loan

if) The Company has entered into an agreement dated 23rd February, 2007 with
Fottune Brand Promotion And Management Trust {the Trust), {of which the
Company is the Settler) for carrylng out brand management services. In
consideration of the same, the Company is required to pay brand management fee
m:heTmst.Sa]eapromodmexpemeaﬁord'nemrimlude&.l&ll.%]au (Previous
year Rs.1890.73 lacs) paid 1o the Trust on the basis of their involces, The agreement
i to contlnue for a period of seven yesrs, unless verminated earbier. As per the
Trust Deed and agreement,dleTmtﬁmdiuheldﬁxd:ebemﬂtufthe'lendemln
respect of their outstanding dues and the brand owners {the Company) in respect
of residual interest. On termination of the agreement at any time, the Company
wﬂlbehablempaymdteTnmofitswmandingbomwlng.nsmducdbydm
funds available to the Trust and also the other costs and expenses towands chosing
of the Trust.

As security, charge by way of hypothecation has been created on the trade marks
andoopyﬁghtsoftwuselfgemuedbmndsofdleCompanymfnmofaBmk
andregimndm&numcedkegﬁmrofmnpaniﬂnspersecﬁmlﬁddw
Companies Act 1956. On the basia of inforration from the Trust, the cutstanding
loan as on the Balance Sheet date is :

2011-2012
1,169.19

089
3244

4, 140,00
450.00
110.74

3,366.98

7.280.06

7,280.06
132,226,786
132,226,786

551
531

2010-2011
1,740.70

089
4

85.00
10.62
33.17
302
236,65
8000

6,359.66

3,563.63



iv) Madhya Pradesh State Induserial Development Corparation Led. has demanded u
smd&.lﬂ.@hﬂbuﬂuunwecmedmmh!cwtof&mdhpdmn
compliance of conditions relating to its holding of shares in Abhishek Cement Ltd,
prior to the merger of Radico Khaitan Lod. in the year 2002-03. Its action has
resulted in a sum of Rs.72.84 tacs held in State Bank of India being attached, The
recovery proceedings initinted by local Caoklector Office sre stayed under the Orders
ofthe MadhvaPradeshHighCoumThCompanyhmkinamlmblemwmmmm
the recovery proceedings.

%) The Company has been sanctioned “Receivable buyout* facility of Ra 4500.00 lacs
by IDBI Bank Ltd. mmtmdemoelwbhﬁm&nmSmDepammd
has executed assignment deed and other required dacumentation. Accordingly,
the amouns avalled and outstarding as on st March, 2012 have been set off
agammemodvnblumdadvnmwcmhmmmwmmdheumdm
Balance Sheet date is :

vi) The Addl. Director General DGCEI (Ham), R.K. Puram, New Delhi has issued 2
show cause notice to the Company on 18.10.2011 on demanding service tax of
Rs.1462.78 lacs plus interest and penalty undet bustyess mudliary service for the
year April 2010 to March 2011, The Company is in the ptocess of submitting the
reply.

33.Intheupinioncfr.heManagementandtod'nebestofmeirhowiedgearﬂbelief,&m

value on realisation of current amets, loans and advances in the ordinary course of
business would notbelessthantheammmtatwlﬂchthzvamsmwdinthewmwe
Sheet.

34.P to the d ntbywavofnddiﬁmofpamﬁmd%fkwhs-llmeﬁwt

ofchangeslnforeignexchaneerates,ﬁeCompmﬂmsemhedd)eopdmofdc&rﬂnﬁ
the foreign exchange fluctuation gain / 1oas in respect of the accounting periods
commencing from 01.04.2007. Further, such foreign exchange differences relating to
acquisition of depreciable capital assets have been adjusted to the cost of such axsets
and depreciated over the balance life of the assets.

As a result.foreign exchange loss of Rs 1281.30 lacs this year on long term foreign
cutrency items pertaining to capital assets has been adjusted to flxed assets. Cut of the
foreign currency monetary items cranslation difference acoount of Ra.2981.51 lucs
(dehit}, as on 31.03.2012, a sum of Rs.296.86 lacs has been debired to loss on foreign
exchange Auctuation account during the year,

35, The Company has taken premises on aperating lease. The Lease payments charged

during the yeat to the Statement of profit and loss account amounts to Rs 322.69 lacs.
{Previous Year: Rs.210.85 lacs). Amount due within one year Rs 239.03 tacs.

36, Income Tax -

i) vatsionfcr[ncmanxfordwmrhubemmadeonbmkpwﬂu(MAﬂunder
section 115 JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961. MAT credit available for set off
aggregating to Rs.1577.50 lacs has been shown separately under Long Term Loans
and Advances. The Company can avail the benefit of MAT within the perlod
provided in law.

i} The Company’s factory premises and offices were searched by the Income Tax
Depactment an 15th February, 2011 “There wete no seizure of cash or stocks ete,
from the Company’s premises. The Company has received a notice undet section
153A of the Income Tax Act, 1961 with a direction for flling revised retums in
respect of ssst years 2003-06 to 2010-11. The department has not vet informed the
nature of the allegations againstd\e(:ompen\rnowvldeweuponwhicht}wyam
’oased.Therefore.dwCaupanytsnotmaposiﬂmwwmmthepwibleliabihw
on account of this action.

61

3,599.35



37.Emplovee Benefits : AS15

{) The Company has taken a policy with Life Insurance Corporation of India {LIC) for meeting the acctving lisbility on account of gratulty. The
premium, actuarially ascertained by LIC, 15 charged w the Profic and Loss account. The amount debited to peofit & loes account 15 Rs. 89.77 lacs,

(if) In respect of leave encashment, provision is made based on the actuarial valuation by an independent Actuary. The following information as
required under AS-15 are based on the report of the Actuery / LIC.

Rupees in lacs
Leave Encashment 31032012 31032011
A Economic asmymptions
B Discounting mte 8.50% 8.00%
ii} Future salary increase GO0 5.50%
iii) Expected rate of return on plan assets 0% Q.00%
B Break up of expenses
a) Current service cost 66.24 58.95
b} Interest cost 40.28 M40
¢} Net actuarial {gain)/ loss recognized in the perdod 3622 39.29
d) Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losy 142.74 132.64
€ Change in present value of obligation
@) Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 01/04/201¢ 47390 430.01
b) Inverest cost 40.28 34,40
) Current service cost 66.24 58.95
&) Benefits paid (82,09 (88.75)
¢) Acwmaral (gain)loss on obligation 3622 39.29
f) Present value of obligation as at the end of period 31003/2012 534,58 473.90
Gratuity
A Economic assumptions
) Discounting rate BO0P% 8.00%
if) Future salary increase 500% 5.00%
iii) Expected rate of retum on plan assets 940% 9.40%
B Break up of expenses
a) Cusrent service cost - 57.60 5692
b) Interest coac 5216 47.94
& Expected return on plan assets (57.03) (5110}
d) Net actuarial (gain}/ koss recognized in the period 305 9.93
€) Expenses recognized in the statement of profic & loss 89,77 63.70
C Change in present value of obligation
a) Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 010472011 65202 547.10
b) Interest cost 5316 4794
& Current service cost 57.60 56.92
d) Benefits paid (30.72) {62.07)
&) Actuarial {galn)/loss on cbligation 37.05 993
t Present value of cbligation as at the end of perlod 31/03/2012 760.10 652.02
D Change in fair value of plan aasets
2} Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 621.82 572.82
b) Expected return on plan assets 5703 51.10
¢} Contributions 65.40 59.97
d) Benefits paid (38.72) 6201
) Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 70553 621.82
£ Liability recognised in the balence sheet 54.57 30.20
(iii) The Company in addition has recognised as expense the following:-
a) Contribution to recognised Frovident Fund (inleuding Family Pension} 265,11 235.27
b) Contribution te LIC towards Superannuation. 13142 11531
o Medical insurance premium, 103.12 90.50
d) Contribution to Employees State Insurance 25.49 23.58
38.Segment reporting :

Based on the guideline in Accounting Standard on segment reporting (AS- 17), the Company’s primary business segment is manufecture and trading in
liquor, The liquor business incorporates the product groups, namely, recrified spirit, country Ygor and IMFL which mainly have similar risks end returns.
Therefore, segment reporting 15 not applicable.

B2



39, Related party disclosuee as per Accounting Standard -16 3

A Related parties and their relationship ¢

1 Enterprises that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,control, or are controlled by,

reporting enterptise :
(1) Sapphire Intrex Led.
II Associates and Joint Ventures

or are ynder common control with, the

{l) Diageo Radico Distillecies Private Limited {ceased o be a IV weed. 03-Feb-12)
@ Radico NV Distilleries Maharashtra Limited

) Radica Gicbal Limited (an Associace)
(1} Dr. lalic Khaltan, Chalrman & Managing Director

1M1 Key Manangement petsannel :

2 Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, Managing Director

(3) Mr. K.P. Singh, Whole Time Director

Relarives :

(1) Mrs, Deepshikha Khaltan (Wife of Mr. Abhishek Khaitan}

(2} Mus. Shallzja Sataf (Daughter of Dr. Latit Khaitan)

(3) Mr. Padmanabh Mandelia (Grand

son of Dr, Lalit Khaitan)

B Tramaction with above in the ordinary course of business : Rupeses in Incs
oo 30000
Key Manangement Personnet 1
Dr. Latic Khaitan, Chairman & Managing Directar
Remuneration 18732 187.33
Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, Managing Director
Remuneration 147 .81 146.66
Mr. X.P. Singh, Whele Time Director
Remuneration 88.43 85.32
Mrs. Deepshikha Khaitan (wife of Mr. Abhishek Khaitan)
Remuneration 10.53 503
Mis. Shailaja Saraf (Daughter of Dr. Lalic Khaitan)
Remuneration 7.4 5.56
M. Padmansbh Mandelia (Grand son of Dr. Lalic Khaitan}
Remuneration 10.61 45
Enterprises that directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, or are under
comumon control with, the reporting entexyrise :
Sapphire Intrex Ltd.
Rent Paid ) 60.00 60.00
Associates and Joint Ventures :
Disgeo Radico Distilleries Private Limited (ceased to be a JV w.ef. 03-Feb-12)
Receivable - 8.40
Payable 360.42 384,08
Radico NV Distilleries Maharashtra Limited
Sale of Goods 562.12 843.45
Reimbursement of [T support charges {Cr) 44.12 49.82
Tie-up operation income {net of botiting charges) 1,238.68 1,303.15
Interest income on loan given 5638 -
Purchase of material 1.591.48 1.419.66
Investment in share capital 393.74 -
Share application money paid - 150.00
Receivable 3,028.86 1.477.86
Guarantee/ Security given by Radico Khaitan Limited 4,700.74 4,140.00
Radico Global Ld.
Loan given during the vear and outsmnding at the end of the year 409.25 357.20
Interest accrued for the year 25.25 4.76
40, The details of the Company's interest in ita Joint Ventures, having Joint
Contro],upcrtherequimmmhofA&I?oanmciaanporﬁnsof
Interest in Joint Ventures are as under : (Un-audited)
Particulars Diageo Radico Radico NV Distilleries
Diistilleries Pyt Ld, # Maharashtra Lyd.
# ceased o be a [V w.ef: 03-Feb-12 31.03.2012 31.03.2011 31.03.2012 31.03.2011
% Cwaership Interest 0.00% 50.00% 36.00% 36.00%
a  Assems - 4588 10,233.26 9.364.37
b Liabilities - 1,554.39 7,205.13 713370
¢ Income - 388 7.146.45 6,220.38
d Expenses - 121.18 6,773.55 6.281.26
e Contingent Liabilitles - - 362.80 87.95
f Capttal Commitments - - 1.41 81.66



31.03.2012 31.03.2011
41, Remuneration to Auditors
a  Audit Fee .00 18.30
Certification of Statements 3.50 93
Service tax 242 219
Expenses for audit and other work 4.47 2.55
b Cost Audit Fee 0.58 .58
Expenses for Cost Audit Q.16 0.08
42.In the opinion of the management, there is no impairment of assets requiring provision in accordance with AS-28.
43.{Quantitative and other information
a) Particulars of Capacity and Production Uit Licenued Installed* Production
Capacity per annum
1. Molasses / Grain / Malt spirit* KL/BL AT 4% 102 460 102,460 85,386
(102,460) (102,460) BN
KL/AL 26,312 26312 80,733
(96,312} 56,312} {84,522)
2. Blogas 000 ‘M3 No Hcence required 37,397
(38.271)
3, Pex bortles NOS./1000 No Heence required 600,000 572,362
(606,002) (459.444)
* As cenifled by the Management and not verified by the Auditom.,
b) Opening Stock, Closing Stock &
Tumover Opening Stock Closing Stock Turnoreer
Unit Qry e Qty Qry Vialue
1. Aleohol products
& Rectified spirit KL/AL 2,244 537.19 1,601 449,01 7.841 2,610.67
{1,189 {331.89) 2244 (33719 @679 (2.58.03)
) Silent spiric KL/AL 702 213.53 1,512 846.78 Il 16,852.87
{1,249 (742.80) {702y (213.53) 27.040 {9,592.37)
© Cane juice spirit KL/AL 160
{145}
d Malt spiric KL/AL 1,933 2,809.31 1,742 3,037.30 179 34135
(L735}  (2.41341) (1933  (2.809.31) friy,) (148.50)
e} Grain spiric KL/AL 1,823 756.19 1,998 874.61 17,041 6,790.10
(296 (453.4% {1,823) (136.19) (18,081) (6,324.30)
{# Ethancl KL/AL 523 152.12 937 124,78 2,718 75222
O ©0.24) 623) (15210 (L779) (481.68)
2. Other alcohol products
(a) Denatured spirit KL/AL 1 0.35 1 029 0 0
(2} (0.59) ( 0.35) ] (0.00)
() Tndian made foreign liquor AL 1,040,132 1,194.65 1,149,060 147207 24,748,547 95,584.91
(922,802)  {1,00994)  (1.040,132)  (1,194.65) (23,246,347 {84,748.25)
(c) Country liquor AL 82,107 50.56 121,469 7931 9,107,726 47,702.15
{14.424) {10.13) (82,107} {50.56) (9,241,809} (41,138.29)
{d) Imported Alcohclic products
{Beer & Wine) BOTTLES 45,625 47.45 54,268 146.17 99,812 361.83
(17,1809 (41.59) (454625) (47.45) (109,431} (396.66)
3. Pet bottles NOS. 9,035,744 189.30 8,149,010 13832 414,580,222 8,069.22
(6,081,383) {95.65) (9,035,744) {189.30)  (332,588,290) (5.631.33)
4. Jalvik Khad {nds 14,354 .67 254,988 206.51 63,122 2990 .
{17,671} {11.66) {14,354} ©.67 (61,90%) (41.31)
5. Chthers 4,573.16
{4.316.52)
6. Other operating income 14,383.20
{13,813.43)
Total: 5,960.32 7.574.21 198,138.54
— 520140 . 5:56032) (169,227.87)

Note: Figures in brackets are those of previous year,



Unit

c) Purchases: -
- Indtan Made Foreign Liguor Cases
- linported Liquors (Wine & Beer) Bottles
- Alechol BL
d) Consumption of taw materials
O Molasses Quds
{i} Cane juice Qeks
(i) Barley Male Qtls
() Sorghum Qs
& Broken Rice ks
) Miller (Bajra) Qs
(v} Male Malt Scotch/Grain/Graipe Spirits
{vill) Receified spirit / Extra Neutral Alcohol
@ Redn KG
0 Others

& Value of imports calculated on CIF basis:
Raw materials
Components & spare parts
Purchases {Wine & Beer)
Capital goods

) Expenditute in foreign currency on accoutit of
Foreign travel & subscriptions
lnterest/Financtal exp. on FCCB/ECB
Premium on FCCB
Prefesssional fee
Commission paid / Insurance paid
Loan to an Associate Compery
Freight
Others

g Value of impoerted and indigenous taw materals, spare parts
‘companents and stores consumed during the year

Imporced

Indigenous

) Remictance in forelgn currency (NILY/ or e the mandate
banks on account of dividends to non residents
 Number of non resident shareholders
(i} Number of shares held by them
{ifiy Dividend { Rs in lacs)

{v  Year to which the dividend relaces

) Eamings in foreign exchange - Export of goods on FOB basis.

65

——Current Year Previous Year
Quantity Value Value
172,724 3,099.29 3874 3,209.78
113,460 98.20 138,804 118.45
18,181,200 6,243.78 1,111,150 688.04
9441.27 4,016.27
2137421 10,762.58 1.810,159 9,283.30
10,878 43.15 13,135 45.94
14,689 669 19,121 378.05
. - 31,731 318.72
551,216 5,770.56 418,329 4,040.16
162,187 1,378.83 L0 2,563.88
- 575.69 - 366.05
- 1,420.37 - 20501
7,996,044 761310 7,537,924 5,836.51
- 428.88 - 550.75
55. 2543407
520,99 12130
118.75 120.13
OR.21 118.45
1,373.53 848.04
71.87 96.28
1,510.73 659.24
4,564 83 -
29.68 127.79
13.86 17.29
409.25 357.20
1,392.03 112.63
363 21.04

Raw Materials ) Others

Value % of 1otal Value % of total
Consumption Connunption
520.99 182 118.75 0.55
(227.30) {0.89) {120.13) 0.3
28,034.86 98.18 18,192.48 9935
25,206.7 .11 Iléﬁ'ﬂ 28
28,555.85 100.0¢ 18,311.23 100.00
(25,434.07) (100.80) {16,720.59) £100.00)
_3103.2012 21.03.2011
18 1
15,500 25,830
Q.11 0.15
2010-11 2009-10
23,96533 12.459.01



44. Foreign currency exposure

a

b

[

31.03.2012
Currency Amount

Hedged by way of forward exchange contracts
Borrowings - Uss .
Not hedged:
Borrowings - FCCB Uss -
Bortawings - ECB
ICICI Bank Ltd.-Bahrain Uss 200.00
ICICI Bank Lid.-Bahrain Uss 292.17
State Bank of India - Singapore Uss 150.00
Interest payable on ECB/FCCB Uss 5.20
Borrowings - Others USs -
Borrowings - Others Euro -
Loan glven Uss 8.00
Export Receivables USs 10790
Export Receivables Buro 0.10
Advance from Customers Uss 180.00
Balance with batiks Uss 550

There are no derivative contracts outstanding as on the balance sheet dete.

3103.2011

Amocunt {lacs)

33910

.76
30.00
9.20

8.00
E16.50

1.68

45.The Company has entered into arrangements with cermin distilleties ard bottling units in other states for manufacture and marketing of its cwn IMFL
brands. The manufacture under the said wrrangement, wherein each party's obligations are stipulated, 1 carried out under it's close supervision. The
marketing Is entirely the responsibliy of the Company and consequently the Company 1s required to bear bad debts arleing on sales The Company is
also required to ensure adequate finance to the distilleries, where required. Accordingly, it is considered appropriate to dislcose the following informa-
tion (unaudited), as applicable ta such activities.

i} Income from cperations through other distilleries / bottling units reflects the net contribution from the ssles made by these Units and is detailed

as under :

31.03.2012 31.03.2011
Gross Sales 113,539.63 89,861.61
Net Sales 49,534.70 44,777.15
Cost of Sales 35,006.91 30,200.45
Gross Profit 14,522.79 14,567.70
Expenses 31921.56 3,263.58
Income 10,606.23 11,304.13

ii} The balance due from distilleries under the arangement, Rs 18954.51 lacs (Previous year Ry 17877.09 lacs) 13 included under advances recaverable.
This iz on account of the financing by the company of inventorles debtors and other current sssets ner of current labilitles on behalf of the Units.

46. Previous year figures have been re-grouped, wherever necessary, to correspond to current year figures.

As per our teport of even date For and on behalf of Board

For V. Sankar Aivar & Co.

Chartered Accountants Dilip K. Banthia Dr. Lalit Khaitsn

JCAI Firm Regn. No. 109208 W Chief Financial Officer Chairman & Mancaging Divector
M. 8. Balachandran Amit Manchanda Abhishek Khaitan
Partner Group Head - Legal & Managing Divector
Membership No. 024282 Compeny Secretary ’

Place : New Delhi Ajay K. Agarwal Directors

Dated : 30th May 2012 Executive Vice President (F&A)
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RADICO KHAITAN LIMITED
Regd. Office : Bareilly Road, Rampur - 244 901 (U.P)

PROXY FORM

Aegd. Folio No(s)/DP& Client 1D No........ccoviverrne,
IO OF SBIBS. . oeeeoereee e vttt et et v esa vt as e rr e s irrr s rrns bs braasbasannsssaunsansnernnersr

e SOOI TR OOy . | [+ I 111177 4

members of the above named company heraby appoint Mr. .........oeummmirsenries OF virerorirnecenescnncccrncrens

e OO OO

as my/our proxy lo vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the 28% Annual General Meeting of the Company lo be held
on Monday, Septomber 24, 2012 at 1.00 p.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed thig ....c.ueeimveierseres day of....ooesnnnn . . 2012

Affix
15 Paisg
Rme AFENIFFERTFFETEETIN bE T bAad

Stamp

SIgNAtUrs........occeveveennse-

Note : 1. This instrument of proxy shall be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less
than 48 (fourty eight) hours before the holding of the meeting.
2. The proxy hoider nesd not be a Member of the Company.

e
'fftffﬁm

RADICO KHAITAN LIMITED
Ragd. Office : Bareilly Road, Rampur - 244 901 (U.P}

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(for attending the 28th Annual General Meeting to be held on Monday, September 24*, 2012 at 1.00 p.m.)

Regd. Folio No{s)/DP & Clgnt ID NO. ........cocovvivriiniioriimecrniniominnns
o - T O P PSP PP
Name of Shareholder/ Proxy holder/Representalive..................oceisvieinans

Date ....................... Signature _.....

________._._.....—.........—......_._..........._.....-._.-.—.——————I_—————-—-—-——--—-—-...-.-.—..———————————————————————*#_
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